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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Expand behavioral health services

Minutes: Attachments 1-8.

Chairman Weisz: called hearing for HB 1040.

Rep Hogan: Chair of the Interim Human Service Committee. Explained HB 1040 (See
Attachment 1,2,3). 0:50-12:10

Chairman Weisz: \We are talking dollars here on section 6 does North Dakota currently have
an organization providing these services now?

Rep Hogan: There have been historically some services, but not available all over the state
so this would make it available statewide.

Representative P. Anderson: \When you talk about 22,000 adults, can you give me the top
2 or 3 diagnosis?

Rep Hogan: 1. Depression 2. Schizophrenia 3. Manic depressive disorders. These are
medical conditions that people don’t chose to have. Mental illness is a very chronic disease.
There are all kinds of affective disorder there is a whole book of different labels.

Chairman Weisz: Any further questions?
Representative Porter: Inside of the grants with the way they are written, they could all end
up in the same place. It doesn’t say anything about statewide services or making sure we get

into rural North Dakota. How do we make sure there is actual treatment available?

Rep Hogan: The problem is in the detail of the implementation. Those are amendments you
might want to put in this bill to assure statewide access.
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Representative Porter: You do bring it out in section 4 that it has to be available in rural and
urban but other than that nothing.

Rep Hogan: You might want to add that.

Representative Porter: Inside of section 7 the targeted case management, as your interim
committee looked at behavioral health was there discussion inside of the current voucher
system that we have in place and inside of the current case-loads in our already existing
Human Service Center that would allow us to re-designate jobs and not have a $24 million
fiscal note and still have the same results rather that create something new on top of the
antiquated system?

Hogan: We addressed that in other bills on our list and there is a substantial discussion in
SB 2039 regarding the role and function of the Department of Human Services. We did major
work on clarifying their roles and how to link our public and private sector more effectively.
We think we need both restructuring and expansion.

Representative Porter: It is hard for me to understand and agency that takes1/3 of our
general fund that it can’t inside of that operation to restructure the way the programs are
designed and figure out how to make this function properly. | would have liked to see both of
those bills together rather than split. One doesn’t do the other justice without seeing both at
the same time. Seeing where those savings are in the system rather than having to start a
brand new program. But yet there is no guarantee that restructuring of the existing program
will take place and if one passes without the other it another layer on top of the system.

Rep Hogan: That is critical because in some ways the role of the Human Service Centers
have become so diverse over time that we need to target those. That perhaps this case
management isn’t provided by Human Services, maybe it is contracted to private agencies or
vouchered. This is just identifying the fact that 90% of adults are getting no services who need
it.

Representative McWilliams: In Section 4 you discussed appropriations for youth and
preventative services. Is there any evidence about early intervention relates to helping to
lower the costs of care later on?

Rep Hogan: Yes, there is clear evidence that it does decrease costs of more treatment later.

Representative Schneider: Can you give us some idea of the input of sources that came to
your committee and how the committee voted on this particular bill?

Rep Hogan: This was a complex committee and we had hundreds of people testify this was
about 10 % of what was asked for. We tried to look at what were the highest needs and see
if it is a good investment now would it save us money down the road. Committee was had a
consensus that this was our priority and this passed unanimously bipartisan.

Rep. Rohr: On section 2 the fee that is being charged for the drug and education program,
how many children under 21 are we looking at in North Dakota and what is the intent of the
fee? You say in your testimony that to $10,000 would eventually be self- sufficient. |s that
what you are looking at then?
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Rep Hogan: The $10,000 is to establish a model and a program and then it is anticipated a
local provider then the consumer would pay them and then it would become self-sufficient.

Chairman Weisz: Further questions from the committee? Further testimony in support of on
HB 10407

Carlotta McCleary, Exc. Director Mental Health America of North Dakota and North
Dakota Federation of Families for Children’s Mental Health. (See attachment # 4 and 5).
31:03

Chairman Weisz: Further testimony in support of HB 10407

Siobhan Deppa, Chairman of the North Dakota Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Planning Council: (See Attachment #6).

Representative Porter: Is there currently an organization who would do this and be sure it
would be done statewide?

Siobhan Deppa: | believe it would be done under contract. Carlotta McCleary has a grant
and could answer this better but she was setting up the basic structure of peer support and
for the training.

Chairman Weisz: Further testimony in support?

Nancy McKenzie Executive Director of PATH: (See Attachment #7)
36:00-38:13

Chairman Weisz: Any questions from the committee?
Seeing none. Further testimony in support of HB 1040.

Denise Harvey, Exe. Of Protection and Advocacy: (See Attachment #8) 38:40-40:27

Chairman Weisz: Any further testimony in support or opposition to HB 1040. Closed the
hearing.
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Chairman Weisz: called committee to order and opened the discussion on HB 1040.
We will take this section by section and make amendments as needed and then we can take
on the whole.

Chairman Weisz: On section 1 is there anybody that has any amendments or questions? It
says they have to go to an evidence based alcohol and drug education for minors. | did have
someone that had some concerns about the language on what it meant to be a rule adopted
by the department. They were concerned that it might get arbitrary. At some point someone
has to set the parameters too. That is the only thing that was brought forward to me in that
section. They had some concerns because they were already doing the treatment program
that they did for the youth and they didn’'t want to have to start over.

Representative Seibel: Can we call Pam up here and ask her any questions on it?
Pam Sagness, Department of Human Services

Representative Seibel: Section 1 and section 2 would be the evidence based alcohol and
drug. Right now there is an alcohol and drug program, but this would change that to an
evidenced based program. Can you explain that to us?

P. Sagness: Currently in ND there is no minimum standard for alcohol education in the state.
It is however required in ND Century Code chapter 5 that if a minor is charged with like a
minor in possession or a minor in consumption. They are required in that statute to get
education, however, there has never been any entity that has been assigned the authority to
insure that it occurs. So this was brought to our attention and it was identified that there
really was no responsible party to enforce the part of the Century Code that already existed.
| think it is important to note that our goal in the interim committee was to increase providers.
There are many areas of the state right now where there are no providers of early intervention
programs. There are a few addiction counselors in the state that provide this service and
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there are a few early intervention programs in urban areas, however by increasing the
providers we could look at local public health. | know that Cass County Public Health has
already done the training. | think it is also important to note that this evidence based training
is the same training that those providers were. It has fidelity measures and it is the same
method that is used for all of the DUI programs throughout the state. | think it is important to
clarify that this isn't something new and | know some of the individuals that have come
forward and don’t want to have evidence based minimum standards. These are individuals
alone with children and so for us to not have some minimum standards would certainly be of
concern to us in our role of health and safety.

Vice Chairman Rohr It is concerning that this is 15 years old.

P. Sagness: yes it is.

Vice Chairman Rohr: So is someone going in and looking at the research and making sure
they are updated on a periodic basis or at least is there documentation that the standard is
being looked at?

P. Sagness: No.

Chairman Weisz: This bill would cover that though.

P. Sagness: Correct.

Chairman Weisz: Any questions on sections 1 or 2?

Representative Seibel: In section 3 you indicated that this could be done without the $10,000
appropriation?

P. Sagness: Correct. The dollar amount was added by the interim committee, but the
department doesn’t believe that those dollars are necessary. This does fall within the scope
of one of our federal grants which is the substance abuse prevention and treatment block
grant. We believe that we could not only train the providers, but make the changes that are
needed without any additional funds.

Representative Seibel: | would make a motion for an amendment to remove section 3.
Chairman Weisz: Is there a second?

Representative Kiefert: seconded.

Chairman Weisz: Is there any discussion? So Sections 3 will go away under this.

Chairman Weisz: voice vote to pass the amendment.

Voice passed.
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Chairman Weisz: Let's go to section 4. 1.956 million that is going for early childhood
intervention programs.

Representative P. Anderson: If we approve this and it goes to appropriations you have to go
and plead our case. So is this something that you think is going to work or are there other
parts of the bill that we ought to be focused on as far as where the dollars go?

Chairman Weisz: | know there are some who think that section 6 is a priority over section 4
and that is part of what this committee needs to decide. | will be honest that any of these are
going to be a tough sell, but they are not all going to make it in appropriations.

Representative P. Anderson: That is my question.

Representative Schneider: Section 4 is a pay now or pay later section. | think there is
sufficient documentation to show that if we can intervene at an early age we can save money
in the future on the cost of services. Even though we may not have an appropriation passed
that provides for the whole behavioral health bill, | think defeating this would be very short
sighted monetarily.

Chairman Weisz: Let's consider sections 4 and 6 together then.

Vice Chairman Rohr where is the evidence based documentation and research that is out
there regarding this topic.

Representative Schneider: That interim reports from the behavioral health committee that
they had. Maybe Pam remembers more than | do. | think it is a pretty commonly held belief,
but | believe there is actually documentation that came into the committee.

Representative Seibel: There was lots of testimony on early intervention. | remember early
in the meetings principals here in Bismarck coming in and stating that they don’t teach any
new material on Mondays or Fridays because the kid's home life is so bad that they can't
learn on Mondays and Fridays, so they just review. They teach new material on Tuesday,
Wednesday, and Thursday only. | am a firm believer in pay now or pay later. | would like to
save part of this bill and the part | would like to save is the peer to peer. If | have to sacrifice
the early intervention to try to save part of it, | am willing to do that. | would like to save both,
but | don’t think that is possible.

Chairman Weisz: Why do you think that section 6 is more important that section 47

Representative Seibel: There is someone here that is a recovering addict and he is active in
the peer to peer. Itis what helped him the most. Having other recovering addicts to visit with
and to lean on and to find out that he was not the only one going through what he was going
through, so | see real value in the peer to peer personally.

Representative Skroch: In section 4 lines 7 and 8. So we have specific organizations that
will be receiving those grants and who determines who will receive a grant?
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Chairman Weisz: The department would be the one to determine. It could be an individual
or an organization, correct?

P.Sagness: In this section when we talk about prevention and early intervention, we don't
necessarily have prevention providers in the state. We do in some areas and in others we
don't. My concern about the implementation of this would be, if a school wanted to implement
an early intervention program, would they be able to be considered a prevention provider or
would we have to find someone outside of the school to be the provider to then work with the
school based on the current language?

Chairman Weisz: That was going to be my question, but you obviously don’t have the answer.

Representative McWilliams: Do we have any documentation on how many of the kids that
have addictions come from homes where there is drug?

P Sagness: Having a parent with a drug addiction or a mental issue is not something we
document. One of the most important things we do is that we identify the most likely to end
up either having a substance abuse issue or a mental health issue. Frequently the children
identified have a parent that has a substance abuse or mental health issue. What we want
to do is look at resiliency. How do you wrap around those children to intervene between first
symptom and diagnosis. That is what this program would do.

Chairman Weisz: This is behavioral health, not just addictions. There are lots of categories.

Representative Skroch: Going back to the public school providing intervention, do you see
that as a workable option here that would fall under that organization classification.

P. Sagness: Schools have been part of the conversation in regard to where are our children.
Where is the opportunity to look at prevention screening and early intervention. We have
been contacted by several organizations representing the schools. They have an interest in
a partnership exactly like this. | do think the schools would be considered part of the provider

group.

Representative Skroch: What would be a backup or assisting group that could help them not
to become overwhelmed.

P. Sagness: Globally there is really two ways to address this. Over the last year looking at
our need assessment for the state, there really were two identified models. One is that
schools know that they are ill equipped to handle the behavioral health issues. They were
trained to deal with special education not behavioral health. So it is important to note that
they would not necessarily have the resources internally. At the same time if you identify
only one person to have all of the knowledge that is quite a load to carry. The different ways
that we can do this are: build the capacity of all the individuals within the school; the second
part is offering them basically resources externally. So they would have a behavioral health
specialist that they can call when they have a difficult child. It is almost two fold. In the
models we have discussed it is a partnership that brings behavioral health specialists with
schools. They also have to learn how to cross the language. Behavioral health and special
education are very different.
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Representative McWilliams: We talked about section 6, peer to peer support. Can you
describe what that looks like?

P. Sagness: When we look at that peer to peer or family to family support services it is
covering that continuum. We have available acute services, we have treatment services
which are costly and fairly limited. One of the opportunities of peer to peer and family to
family is that it is continuous. Having someone who understands what you have been
through. | think it is important to note that this is something that is occurring nationally and
the department is working on the certification for recovery coaches or peer to peer support.

Vice Chairman Rohr: Under section 4 a statement caught my eye, because my constituents
are primarily rural. Do you expect any challenges of providing these services in the rural
areas?.

P. Sagness: Of course the rural areas is where it is most difficult to find people. Faith based
community is totally on board, but feel ill equipped. One of the things we can do with some
of these models is to identify in those rural areas who are those key individuals. This is the
strategy of not having more behavioral health specialists in rural areas, but we can identify
paraprofessionals and other individuals that are already there and willing to help.

Chairman Weisz: Behavioral health is a tough issue. There is a bill in the senate that is a
$7,000,000. | am not sure how that is going, but it is more less a pilot project with the
department of corrections. It is set up differently. It is performance based. Then
appropriations is just looking at the funding level. We can’t do everything. | agree that it is
a pay me now or pay me later. We need data that will really identify where this is really going
to save money. We have to do something, but we aren’t sure just what needs to be the
balance in this session. DOC bill will potentially let us know if we pay it now will we save
costs later. From that stand point it will help us to get the data. It is hard to take it to
appropriations and defend what we want without data to back it up.

Representative Schneider: | understand what you are saying, but we have evidence.
Reading the behavioral health needs of the state was pretty shocking. | agree with you on
that DOC bill and that is an exciting part to the solution. On this one we have two programs
that we know from the interim committee are impactful and important. Section 4 is speaking
for a population that can’t speak for itself and it isn’t included in the DOC bill and that is the
children. | would be inclined to put you in a position of personal jeopardy to leave both of
these in here so that when we have increased funding we can tie back into this message.

Chairman Weisz: | don’'t want you to think that we can'’t carry them both if that is what the
committee wants. | will do that. | will say that section 7 would be hard.

Representative Seibel: We heard that 2/3 of judges have sentenced someone to prison
because of behavioral issues, because there were no services available. | think the peer to
peer and the family to family when they get out is a way to try to keep them from going back.

Representative McWilliams: | think | agree with Representative Seibel if | have to fight for
one of them.
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Representative Skroch: If we send this bill with both sections in it and then the appropriations
committee decides they don’t have enough money could they send it back to us and let us
adjust it? Would we be willing to offer both of these with less appropriated dollars?

Chairman Weisz: We could send it to appropriations as they are and appropriations could
kill it. We could amend it to say whatever. Knowing the pressure and time constraints that
appropriations has, if we think one has more weight than the other we can do that too. They
have time constraints in appropriations that we don’t have. If we think one is more important
than the other on it is better if we do it here, because they won’t spend nearly as much time
on it.

Representative Porter: The likelihood of both of them moving forward even at a reduced rate
is slim. It would be my suggestion to pick one, because appropriations would just kill the
whole thing.

Representative P. Anderson: Could you have a pilot project to see what happens to the kids
in a certain school district. To see how we could save money with early intervention.

Chairman Weisz: | think that what you are saying is to have a pilot project.

Representative P. Anderson: Or to say these kids dropped out and they are now incarcerated
or what happened to them and what did it cost the system. Even in a 2 year time frame we
can show that we could have saved money.

P. Sagness: There are other states that have done this and have shown that for every $1
you spend you could save $64.

Representative P. Anderson: Like if we could say this many kids dropped out, why did they
drop out and where are they now.

Chairman Weisz: If we said $100,000 or $200,000 to do one school district could we have
something in 2 years to show us what it has done? We need data to show the results.

P. Sagness: Yes, we could do that in a two-year period as long as it was a focused study
and our goals are reasonable. The goal of that kind of pilot would be did that individual stay
in school. The schools are reaching out to us to be able to do that. They want to be part of
this process.

Chairman Weisz: If we were just to run one limited pilot project, what would it take?

P. Sagness: It would be really difficult to set a number. There was a bill put together by the
council of education leaders. There is a program now that is $4,000,000, but it covers several
school districts and | think maybe we could do it for $300,000 to $400,000, but that is just a
guess.

Chairman Weisz: | was hoping you would take $200,000. | am just trying to figure out how
we could have data in 2 years so we could really show them exactly what we need to do.
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We have kicked the can down the road on behavioral health a long time. We should have
started things when we had money so that we would have data now. We didn’t do that, but
at the same time with the budget constraints | don’t want it to go away. If we kick the can
again, it could. If we gave you that money, could you do that?

P. Sagness: We would do everything in our power to do that. There are two areas that we
see significant gaps. Prevention and intervention and recovery. The two sections that you
are discussing right now are exactly those two area. | do know that we would do everything
we can to partner with existing resources to try to make that happen.

Vice Chairman Rohr: | know that they already ask questions of kids about risky behaviors
when you do their assessments. Have you been involved in a conversation in that area?

P. Sagness: | have been part of the youth risk behavior survey question choosing for more
than a decade. There would be several ways that we could identify a high need school. The
problem is that often when we find that school, the resources are not there. | think we would
want to put together a formula.

Vice Chairman Rohr: That is why | am thinking that maybe you could get by with less money,
because you already have that data that could help you locate an area that would be best
served by this project.

P. Sagness: If | could add to that. It is really about blending several funding resources. One
thing is that there are reimbursable services and we need to look at this in that way. If there
are clinical services needed for a child where can we go to get those services that they would
already be reimbursed. It is mostly the coordination, education and building the capacity of
those who deal everyday with the youth. To help them find the resources. They often just
don’t know where to go.

Representative Skroch: Would the peer to peer program be able to function with a $100,000
less if we moved some of this money to the child development prevention program.

P. Sagness: | think it is important to note that the items in this bill don’t already exist, so it is
not taking away, so it wouldn’t be taking away from current services, it would just mean less
service would be able to be provided.

Chairman Weisz:. | think maybe we should look at a pilot project to be able to prove that this
really would work. It's just a suggestion. It could show that the interventions were successful
and then two years from now we would have data.

Representative P. Anderson: | move that section 4 be pilot for $200,000.

Chairman Weisz: Ok we do have a motion. Do we have a second?

Representative McWilliams: Second

Chairman Weisz: Discussion. We would turn it into a pilot and get the language so that it
would reflect that the department would pick a school system for the pilot project.
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Representative Porter: And they need to report back.

Vice Chairman Rohr: In the interim we asked the fiscal people to show us how many dollars
we spend in early intervention/prevention verses recovery or maintenance and we put in a
lot of money into prevention already but we never seem to hear the outcomes or results of
that. | think this will be a better way to handle it, because we will actually get data. | also
see section 6 as prevention too.

Representative Skroch: | would like to see this pilot cover both rural and urban so that we
get a better balance.

Chairman Weisz: | think we need to just find a place to be able to show us whether this is
saving us money. If we do rural where there are no support services, it won't tell us exactly
what it could do.

Representative McWilliams: | think when we are looking at the pilot program and you are
looking at Fargo or Grand Forks, you could just split the difference and do it in Hillsboro.

Representative Schneider: | know that you are all trying to do the right thing, but if these cuts
keep coming we are going to end up with a law suit. These were things that were important
in the interim. | think Chairman Weisz is right and we should have done something before
while we had money. We should be putting the money into whatever we can and not cutting.
Chairman Weisz: We certainly need to think about potential litigation.

Chairman Weisz: Further discussion? | think we

Roll call vote taken on amendment.

Motion carried Yes 11 No1 Absent 2

Chairman Weisz: Representative Skroch, you don't just say that we are taking out $100,000,
you would just increase the money. Make a motion to whatever level you think it should go
up to.

Representative Skroch: | make a motion to increase the funding for the pilot project
$200,000 to $300,000.

No second so motion failed.

Chairman Weisz: Instead of going back and forth here let’'s go to section 6. Do you want to
amend section 6 or leave it or what?

Representative P. Anderson: | would like to leave it where it is.
Chairman Weisz: So no amendments going into section 67 Ok let’s look at section 5.

Representative Seibel: The 211 is basically phone answering services? Don’t we already
have that?
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Chairman Weisz: Yes, they are supposed to have 24/7 access. Currently 211 has a budget
of $850,000 and out of that $500,000 is already coming from the Department of Human
Services in one form or another. This would increase it another $70,000. This would
increase the data base | guess.

Representative Seibel: | make a motion to remove section 5 from the bill.

Vice Chairman Rohr: seconded

Chairman Weisz: Ok, we have a motion and a second to remove Section 5. Is there any
further discussion? Ok we will try a voice vote.

Voice vote carried the motion.
Chairman Weisz: Now we get to the one with a small amount of money in it. Section 7.

Vice Chairman Rohr: | make a motion to delete section 7
Representative Seibel: | second it

Chairman Weisz: Discussion on section 7

Representative Schneider: do we know what federal funds we would be losing if we delete
this section?

Chairman Weisz: | can’t answer that. Pam, do you know?

P. Sagness: No | don’'t know.

Chairman Weisz: | don’t know if any of this would fall under Medicaid.

P. Sagness: No

Representative McWilliams: | saw this in Rep. Hogan’s testimony she said in section 7
appropriate $24,393,668 of which $12,000,000 was from the general funds, so | would

imagine that half of that is federal.

Chairman Weisz: Where does that come from if it isn’t from Medicaid. Where else would we
get 50/50 share?

Representative Westlind: | have in my notes that it is a 50/50 Medicaid match. That was
stated that day or something.

P. Sagness: | am waiting on a response on that and hopefully we will get that. | am thinking
that maybe this would be proposed, but not currently existent. | am not sure if we would lose
federal funding or if we just be expanding more.

Chairman Weisz: This would just be one of the optional services that we could provide.
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Vice Chairman Rohr: So am | correct in assuming we are already providing case
management services?

Chairman Weisz: We are not losing anything, but this would be in addition. We don’t have
that now. It is not within Medicaid now.

P. Sagness: | just wanted to clarify based on the discussion during the interim committee.
This was brought forward by a private provider who brought if forward saying this is an issue.
When they are providing medication management that they don’t have access necessarily to
that case management. Right now the public system does provide that. | do know that in
our discussions we have said this was an area that could use further discussion and probably
needs to be looked at.

Chairman Weisz: Further discussion on the amendment?
Representative D. Anderson: Is the senate bill doing the same thing?

Chairman Weisz: It is kind of the same, but it is limited to the prison population. It is in a
sense doing that support and overlap after they get out. That is where that bill comes into
play. | like the fact that there should be some data that comes back. What we have done is
start this by what we have done in Sections 4 and 6. | can do that if | can say this is what
the $7,000,000 did and what the study did for the school. | realize what we are doing is not
solving it, but at least it is a start. We are all trying to pick priorities.

Representative Seibel: | support the amendment to remove section 7 because it adds
another full-time position and we are trying not to do that now.

Representative P. Anderson: | would like to wait and vote on this after lunch.
Chairman Weisz: Yes, we will recess until this afternoon.

Chairman Weisz: Recessed until after lunch.

1:06

Chairman Weisz: Called the committee back to order. Our discussion was down to section
7. There is a motion on the floor to delete section 7.

Representative P. Anderson: She was very happy that we kept in the peer to peer. She
wanted to see if we could keep half the state at $6,000,000 and start with those areas that
are most in need of behavioral health treatment services.

Chairman Weisz: Maggie, since you are here would you come up? | do have a question.
Under section 7 it talks about the target case management. The dept. would have to get a
waiver from Medicaid to implement this and have it paid or not?

Maggie Anderson: Section 7 would expand targeted case management to allow people other
than the human service centers and the tribes or Indian Health Services or 638 Tribes to
provide the service. What we would do is revise the Medicaid state plan. We would not need
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a waiver. Right now within the state plan we mark the exception, so we would unmark the
exception and it would become any provider state wide. If | understood what was being
proposed about just doing like half the state, that would require a waiver, because Medicaid
services either have to have state wideness or you have to have a waiver to not have it state
wide.

Representative McWilliams: Is that ongoing matching funds through Medicaid?

M. Anderson: Medicaid when it is referred to as an entitlement it means that as long as you
are covering the covered population and providing services that are otherwise approved in
the state plan. If we putin $.50 then the federal government puts in $.50. With the
targeted case management if we submitted the state plan, | would see no problems in
having it approved to expand that. Of course that would expand it by $12,000,000 and the
federal government would have to find their $12,000,000 to pay that service. Itis
essentially on going as long as you are covering covered populations and services that are
approved.

Representative Schneider: Is there another way to structure this to be less of a fiscal note
and still accomplish at least part of what is intended here.

M. Anderson: The department prepared the estimate that turned into the appropriation that
is in section 7. The piece that is coming to mind is to separate your populations, because
you have a adult population that is referred to as SMI, seriously mentally ill, and you have a
child population that SED, seriously emotionally disturbed. While they are on the same state
plan amendment, you could separate those as two services and say we would only open up
the service outside the public system for the kids or the adults. That would be one way to
reduce the fiscal note. | can tell you how much in just a few minutes.

Chairman Weisz: Further questions for Maggie. We do have the amendment in front of us
that would be to delete. Further discussion? We will take a roll call on this one.

Roll called on the amendment.
Motion carried Yes 11 No 1 Absent 2

Representative P. Anderson: | move for an amendment to appropriate 6 million and not
authorize a full time equivalent.

Chairman Weisz: That is in section 7. So section 7 would come back and allocate $6,000,000
of state and $6,000,000 of federal.

Representative Schneider: | would like to see the figures if the department can come up with
them in a timely manner.

M. Anderson: Of the total $12,000,000, 5 million for adult population and 7 million for the
children. So reducing it would be to choose one or the other.

Representative Schneider: Can you render an opinion on which would be the most critical
need?
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M. Anderson: Between the two of us it is a tough call. When we did the fiscal estimate we
looked at the prevalent information that came from the national survey on drug use and then
Pam'’s federal agency. Then we looked at the number of clients that we are currently serving
through the human service centers and that leaves you with your potential clients unserved.
That left us with about 8,241 people that would receive SMI case management and about
1636 that would receive SED case management. The population is smaller, but the fiscal
note is higher for children because on average they tend to receive about 18 months of
services where the adults was 6 months.

Representative P. Anderson: Children 1636 and the adult was 8,241

Representative McWilliams: Do we have an age breakdown for the adult population of when
they are receiving services?

M. Anderson: No, we only know the people that are over 21.

Representative P. Anderson: Can | amend this or withdraw it or something? If we can spend
$5,000,000 and help 8,241 | thing that is the way to go.

Chairman Weisz: We don’t have a second yet, so you can amend it however you want to.

Representative P. Anderson: | make a motion that we put in 5 million for the SMI adults.
Representative Schneider: Seconded

Chairman Weisz: so what the amendment would do is provide $5,000,000 for case
management services for the SMI adult population. Maggie when you said $5,000,000 that
was general fund dollars?

M. Anderson: Yes, that was $5 million general fund and then it would be another $5 million
of federal. That is with an October, 2017 start date.

Chairman Weisz: Amendment in front of us. Are there any questions? If not, the clerk will
call the roll.
Roll call vote taken. Motion failed: yes2 no 10 absent2

Chairman Weisz: Are there any further amendments?

We have a heavily amended bill in front of us. So that everyone understands now. Section
1 and 2 of the bill stays the same. Section 3 the appropriation is taken out. Section 4 was
amended down to be $2000,000 pilot project as determined by the dept. of human services.
Section 5 is gone. Section 6 stays the same. Section 7 is gone.

Vice Chairman Rohr: | make an a motion to pass HB 1040 as amended and referred back
to appropriations.

Representative Kiefert: | second it.
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Chairman Weisz: The clerk will call the roll for a do pass as amended and referred back to
appropriations on HB 1040.

Roll call vote taken.
Motion carried. Yes 11 No 0O Absent 3

Rep Seibel will carry it.

Committee adjourned.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1040
Page 1, line 5, after the semicolon insert "to provide for a report;"
Page 1, remove lines 19 through 23
Page 2, remove lines 1 and 2
Page 2, line 3, replace "CHILDRENS" with "PILOT PROJECT - CHILDREN'S"
Page 2, line 4, after "SERVICES" insert "- REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT"
Page 2, line 6, replace "$1,956,000" with "$200,000"

Page 2, line 7, replace "providing grants to organizations that provide" with "establishing a
children's"

Page 2, line 8, replace "for children" with "pilot project in the school system of the department's
choice"

Page 2, line 10, remove "Services must be made available in both rural and urban"

Page 2, replace line 11 with "Before September 1, 2018, the department of human services
shall report to the legislative management regarding the status of the children's
prevention and early intervention behavioral health services pilot project."

Page 2, remove lines 12 through 18
Page 2, remove lines 27 through 31
Page 3, remove lines 1 through 6

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 17.0183.04001
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Insert LC: 17.0183.04001 Title: 04000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1040: Human Services Committee (Rep.Weisz, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS,
3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1040 was placed on the Sixth order on the
calendar.

Page 1, line 5, after the semicolon insert "to provide for a report;"

Page 1, remove lines 19 through 23

Page 2, remove lines 1 and 2

Page 2, line 3, replace "CHILDRENS" with "PILOT PROJECT - CHILDREN'S"

Page 2, line 4, after "SERVICES" insert "- REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT"

Page 2, line 6, replace "$1,956,000" with "$200,000"

Page 2, line 7, replace "providing grants to organizations that provide" with "establishing a
children's"

Page 2, line 8, replace "for children" with "pilot project in the school system of the
department's choice"

Page 2, line 10, remove "Services must be made available in both rural and urban"

Page 2, replace line 11 with "Before September 1, 2018, the department of human services
shall report to the legislative management regarding the status of the children's
prevention and early intervention behavioral health services pilot project.”

Page 2, remove lines 12 through 18

Page 2, remove lines 27 through 31

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 6

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_23_014
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Appropriations Committee
Roughrider Room, State Capitol

HB 1040
2/9/2017
28166/28172

0 Subcommittee
[J Conference Committee
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:
Relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; relating to a penalty for individuals
under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed premises; to provide for
a report; and to provide appropriations to the department of human services.

Minutes:

Representative Weisz, district 14: HB 1040 came to us as a behavior health bill, we heavily
amended it. So what you're going to see as far as the dollars; under section 3 on page 2 on the
amended bill there is 200 thousand general fund dollars for a grant through the department of
human services for the purpose of establishing a children’s prevention and early intervention
behavioral health services pilot project in the school system of the department’s choice. We will
let the department find a school system that if we did these services are we going to get results
that is going to save us money in the long run. We did think that was important, the other place
there is money in this bill is section 4; that has the 1.92 million in it. That's to provided peer to
peer services throughout the state. That would be peer to peer, family to family services.
Committee thought that could be very effective to keeping people from relapsing and so that’s
why that’s money is in there.

3:55 Chairman Delzer: How would that money be used?

Representative Weisz: There would be grants that would go out to varies organizations across
the state so that they could establish these types of peer to peer services. They would have to
be set up by the departments criteria. This bill came from the interim human services committee.
Chairman Delzer: It came from the Shalty report

Representative Weisz: Some of it did, some was based on that report.

Representative Pollert: Currently in HB 1012 there is 75 thousand for peer to peer and 75
thousand for family to family; and | think 75 thousand brought in another 100 thousand for

matches. | think it went out to the general public and found some people that would help them
with the grants.
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Chairman Delzer: So a required match before they could spend it?

Representative Pollert: | don’t remember that but possibly, currently there’s 5 thousand in each
of those areas, so this is looking at 1.9 million.

Representative Weisz: Total program would be 1.9 million for both
Chairman Delzer: What's section 2 relate to?

Representative Weisz: Minors that are convicted, and you can see that up in section 1, the
court shall send the violator to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education, that’s current law.
So section 2 says they would have to go to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education
program operated under rules adopted by the department of human services under section of
this act.

Chairman Delzer: What do they consider this evidence-based? Is Teen Challenge evidence-
based?

Representative Weisz: Teen challenge would have nothing to do with this because this would
be school based programs.

Chairman Delzer: Some could go there from the court stand point instead of here can they not?

Representative Weisz: Yes, they can but again court could send you to teen challenge. This
would be if someone would be charged with an alcohol charge they could come to the school
and the minor or parents would have to pay for it and the court would make it monitory to
participate in the program.

Chairman Delzer: So before teen challenge is higher offender then this?

Representative Weisz: Teen challenge is a rehabilitation program, that’s much higher than this.
That's your going to prison or you can go to teen challenge.

Chairman Delzer: Again, why the words evidence based?

Representative Weisz: The reason for that is some people doing the programs where just filing
time. The whole point of the law is that the kids are going to get some proper education. The
department will adopt rules so they would decide who can do these programs. There’s a training
module the counselors would have to follow so that we know the kids are getting the training.

10:45 Representative Streyle: This is just saying your 18, your caught drinking, we will come
in and tell you that it's bad.

Representative Weisz: This is a little more than that, that’s the reason for the language, in some
cases that's all these people were doing.

Representative Meier: Section 3, did your committee discuss how many programs that are
already out there that work with the school?
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Representative Weisz: Yes, and some schools do a lot more than others. Schools say they are
overwhelmed, this is a pilot project and they want to go with a school that already has some
resources. They would like to partner with the school, that's why they thought they could do it
for the 200 thousand.

Representative Meier: Did they talk about what the smaller schools and what they might have
in place.

Representative Weisz: Most of the smaller schools have noting in place. There’s some that
have limited programs but what we wanted out of this is data. We need to know, if we spend the
money are we going to get the results that we are looking for?

Chairman Delzer: A lot of these kids wouldn’t have IEPs, some of them would.

Representative Monson: Section 2 it says that the rules must allow for a fee but it doesn’t say
that they must pay for it.

Representative Weisz: This is stating that the state isn’t liable for any of it. The provider of the
services would be required to charge the fees and collect them.

Chairman Delzer: Further Questions?
Recording 28172

Chairman Delzer: \We'll have some more discussion about this bill, when | look at it | can live
with the 200 thousand, general fund money. | really have a problem with the 1.9 peer to peer,
especially if the budget has 75 thousand for both in there. So | think if we were to send this
forward we should at least amend off section 4. | know the other stuff, the evidence-based, and
that would be up to the department to decide that. And then there is appropriation of general
fund money for 200 thousand to pick a school and try to work this program and get some
information. It says the department of human services shall report to management regarding
the status of the children’s prevention and early intervention health service pilot project. Brady,
when we put something like that in, there’s no date when they should report, it says legislative
management not legislative assembly. Should we change that, otherwise they would have to
report to management.

8:00 Brady Larson Legislative Council: We could certainly change it to a certain committee
of the next legislative assembly, either appropriations or the policy committee if you prefer that.

Chairman Delzer: It does say before December 1 of 2018.
Representative Pollert: When | told about the 75 thousand and then the 100 thousand, those
probably aren’t state wide and are stretched pretty tight. That's why they’re asking the 1.9 but

I’'m really not in favor of that with the budget crunch around here.

Chairman Delzer: This in a new program at a time when we are sitting here with 25 to 30%
less revenue than we had two years ago, it's kind of hard to expand that.
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Representative Kempenich: We’re spending a pile of money on incarceration and adult
mental health, | am trying to figure out where we should be spending the money. We need to
start at a different spot because as adults we're not getting anywhere.

Chairman Delzer: The peer to peer and family to family, doesn’t really say what they are
going after with that. Children, adult, it really doesn’t say.

Representative Vigesaa: | would like to make a motion to amend section 4 out of HB
1040

Representative Pollert: | will second that

Chairman Delzer: Discussion by the committee?

Representative Pollert: Like that peer to peer, when they have a family that's having trouble
finding services, they will call this organization and help them get the help they need. Should
we be paying for that? We have county social services and other groups that are supposed to
be able to help with that.

11:50 Representative J. Nelson: There is a lot of places in the state that this is the only help
these families are getting. \We talked about this at length, this is not a bad program. If it's taken
away there may be no support, the more rural you get the less support out there. | could
support the amendment

Chairman Delzer: | am sure we are going to be talking about this again.

Representative J. Nelson: This appropriates for 1.9 million, that's a long way from 75
thousand, imagine what you get for 75 thousand.

Representative Monson: | don’t understand this peer to peer completely but when | read it it
says, the purpose to grant to A statewide peer to peer or family to family. So this 1.9 million
cover only one of these organizations?

Representative Kempenich: It's like the suicide program, part of it is is hooking up with the
right groups. What we are doing now isn’t working | think we need to look at some different
things.

Chairman Delzer: Seeing no more discussion; all those in favor of amending out section 4

Voice vote, All in Favor, Motion Carries

Chairman Delzer: What's your thought on the pilot program and the evidence based alcohol,
seems almost like two different subjects there.

Representative J. Nelson: | will make a motion to Do Pass as Amended

Representative Kempenich: | will second that motion
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A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 9 Nay: 8 Absent: 4

Motion Carries; Representative J. Nelson will carry the bill
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17.0183.05001 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title.06000 House Appropriations Committee
February 10, 2017

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1040
Page 1, line 5, replace "appropriations" with "an appropriation"
Page 2, remove lines 7 through 14
Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

This amendment removes Section 4 of the engrossed bill which provides a $1,920,000 general
fund appropriation to the Department of Human Services for a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer
or family-to-family support organization.

Page No. 1 17.0183.05001
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2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1040

House Appropriations Committee

O Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description: Remove section 4

Recommendation: Adopt Amendment
] Do Pass (0 Do Not Pass [ Without Committee Recommendation

] As Amended L1 Rerefer to Appropriations
(] Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: [J Reconsider O
Motion Made By  Representative Vigesaa Seconded By Representative Pollert
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
| Chairman Delzer
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Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1040

House Appropriations

0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description:

Committee

Recommendation: [ Adopt Amendment

X Do Pass (] Do Not Pass [0 Without Committee Recommendation

X As Amended (] Rerefer to Appropriations
[] Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: (] Reconsider (]
Motion Made By  Representative J. Nelson Seconded By Representative Kempenich
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Delzer X
Representative Kempenich Representative Streyle X
Representative: Boehning Representative Vigesaa X
Representative: Brabandt X
Representative Brandenburg
Representative Kading X | Representative Boe X
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Floor Assignment Representative J. Nelson

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1040, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (9 YEAS, 8 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1040
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 5, replace "appropriations" with "an appropriation"

Page 2, remove lines 7 through 14

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

This amendment removes Section 4 of the engrossed bill which provides a $1,920,000
general fund appropriation to the Department of Human Services for a grant to a statewide
peer-to-peer or family-to-family support organization.

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_29_005



2017 SENATE HUMAN SERVICES

HB 1040



2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Human Services Committee
Red River Room, State Capitol

HB 1040
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Explanation or reason for introduction o/bill/resolutioua

A bill relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; and to provide an appropriation to the DHS.

Minutes: Attachments: #1 - 8

Chair J. Lee: Brought the hearing to order, all members were present.

Rep. Kathy Hogan, District 21, Chair of Interim Human Services: (1:32-8:30) Introduced
HB 1040 (See Attachments #1 — 2).

Senator Heckaman: On the back on section 7 that is no longer there, you mentioned using
funds on 1915iwaiver is that all Medicaid matching funds that would match the other $12M?

Rep. Hogan: Yes.
Senator Piepkorn: Were the cuts a philosophical opposition to the plan or strictly budgetary?

Rep. Hogan: We were pleased when it came out of the House Human Services Committee
that the funding for recovery was in the House version. The $1.9M was cut in appropriations
and we were very optimistic because | think we knew had to do something but the budget
situation is driving every situation and that is what makes it so difficult.

Chair J. Lee: What is your priority?

Rep Hogan: The two priorities | would do is peer recovery support and direct treatment. |
think we need to put someone in to expand our direct treatment and pay our recovery support.
Those are equal and | think the pilot project with the school project is not a lot for the early
childhood intervention but it's something.

Teresa Larsen, Director, Protection & Advocacy Project: (12:10-16:05) Testified in Favor
of HB 1040 (See Attachment #3).
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Russ Ziegler, Assistant Director, ND Council of Educational Leaders: (17:25-19:15)
Testified in Favor for Dr. Aimee Copas, Executive Director, NDCEL (See Attachment #4).

Swan Deba: (20:05-23:20) Testified in Favor of HB 1040. | am here to ask you to please put
the funding of $1.92M back in HB 1040 in the peer to peer adult services portion. As a
consumer of behavioral health services, | benefited from this program when it was offered 6
years ago since then it has remained unfunded by the legislature but it helped me with an
alcohol addiction. Today | remain relapse free and use many of the skills that | learned from
the peer support program on a daily basis. My mental and physical health have been stable
and | would like other consumers in the state to benefit from this program while they are
working on their own recovery. This in addition to going to treatment and working with the
human service center is a great combination to be able to be successful once you get out of
the hospital and treatment. As a community support, it is one of the best ones offered around
the country.

V-Chair Larsen: What is the percentage of the faith based component in the peer to peer
support?

Swan Deba: There are 8 dimensions of wellness recovery and spirituality is one of the eight
components.

Miss Deba (25:15 - 29:00) provided Testimony from Carlotta McCleary, Executive
Director, Mental Health America of ND & ND Federation of Families for Children’s
Mental Health (See Attachment #5).

Darcie Handt, Executive Director for ND Cares: (29:50-31:45) Testified in Favor of HB
1040 (See Attachment #6).

Senator Heckaman: Do you get a specific grant for peer to peer support or do you just work
with individuals who are already contracted through another organization?

Darcie Handt: We do not receive any funds for peer to peer support.

Chair J. Lee: So you work with the programs that are existing in the state but to connect
veterans with them, correct?

Darcie Handt: That's correct.

Senator Piepkorn: If the $2M were restored, you don’t have an allotment out of that for
veteran services but rather work with the existing framework to get some of your veterans
and other eligible people into the system, correct?

Darcie Handt: That's correct.

Senator Piepkorn: So it would be there to direct your people?

Darcie Handt: Yes, for our focus group.
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Chair J. Lee: Can you take a moment to tell us about ND CARES?

Darcie Handt: (33:00 — 34:25) Mr. Handt gave the committee with a brief overview of the
ND CARES program.

Cindy Miller: (35:40-38:50) Testified in Favor of HB 1040 (See Attachment #7).
Chair J. Lee: As | recall, you had calls from every county.

Cindy Miller: Slope was the only county we didn’t have calls from so we are going to try
and reach out them.

Chair J. Lee: You work with emergency service people so if there is a blizzard you can help
people get the services they need.

Cindy Miller: Currently we have sent all the information out to the emergency managers to
be reminded that we are there. We have a new system set up where we can get more
people set up in the back room so it is not going to cost the counties and the cities as much
money because we can have one staff overseeing volunteers.

Chair J. Lee: How many calls did you take in the last big flood?

Cindy Miller: We had over 50,000 calls over our regular calls and over 100,000 volunteers
Senator Piepkorn: Was the $70,000 included in the original bill?

Cindy Miller: It was included in the original bill.

Senator Kreun: In your statement it says we can expand inclusion/exclusion policy to
include for profit behavioral health services. What type of for profit services would they be
and do they have funding that they can contribute?

Cindy Miller: A lot of 211s started as a nonprofit and now they have let them choose
where they can go according to the need in the community. So it would be any group of
doctors, private providers, those sorts of groups. In the past, we had one group that was for
profit because they had services that no one else offered in the community so that is what
our inclusion/exclusion was before.

Chair J. Lee: For many years, United Way of Cass Clay was a major supporter of this and
paid all of the cost of providing the service in Cass County, ND and Clay County, MN and
the state was paying for the expanded services that you could offer the rest of the state.
United Way is focusing in different areas now so there was a significant cutback in the
funding which you are receiving from United Way so that is a shortfall that is also
challenging for you and your board so that is a shortfall that is challenging for you and your
board in order to maintain the services.

Cindy Miller: We were 100% funded by United Way, and we found out in July that we
would be cut $100,000 this year. They still are funding us at $70,000.
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V-Chair Larsen: When we build database, would we be able to use them to data mine and
have them start formulating the list?

Chair J. Lee: Are you talking about the penitentiary?

Cindy Miller: Ours is more than a 411 database so we are looking at a lot of information.
We need to look at who is eligible and | have been working with behavioral health people
now trying to figure out what we want in this data base and what fields need to be added
now and different types of insurance so when someone is going to look for resources as a
professional or consumer they want to know more information so we’re trying to expand
what information is given. A lot of information is going to be needed so that's why we feel
we need two full time people to gather all the information to get it so it is easy to maneuver
and navigate. Also besides us looking at fields right now and trying to change it, we are
going through beta testing for a more consumer friendly site going up in April and it will be
easier for people who don’t want to call to be able to use the website.

Denice Harvey, Protection & Advocacy: (45:50-46:55) Testified in Favor of HB 1040 and
presented a letter from Marcia Hettich (See Attachment #8).

Lorraine Davis, Founder & Director, NA Development Center: Testified in Favor of HB
1040. Provided information on the support groups they offered and said they were mostly
run by volunteers and they had received a grant. She said they provide financial
counseling. Miss Davis went over some of the issues the Native Americans face.

Chair J. Lee: We would like you to be among the stakeholders in the behavioral health
and substance abuse task force.

Senator Kreun: You mentioned a large amount of people coming from different
reservations. Does your tribal government officially recognize your group?

Lorraine Davis: Yes, we do. We got a resolution of support and | have asked for financial
contributions for a van to pick up people in half way houses.

Miss Davis shared some of the difficulties associated with operational costs and talked
about the trials the people face.

Senator Anderson: In the model you're working with, who are the volunteers and who
gets paid?

Lorraine Davis: We recently got an MOU for the interns and we have other volunteers. |
promote personal sovereignty and we are intentionally not fully funded by any tribe.
Miss Davis shared her personal experience finding a support system.

Senator Heckaman: Have you been in connection with 2117

Lorraine Davis: | have not.
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Senator Heckaman: Have you had another opportunity to work with other diverse
population in the Bismarck community or across the state other than Native Americans?

Lorraine Davis: We have been asked if our center is only for Native Americans but it's for
anybody who feels comfortable in our environment but we want to fill the gap in our Native
American community.

V-Chair Larsen: Closed hearing on HB 1040.
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Chair J. Lee: Brought the hearing to order, all members were present.
Senator Piepkorn: That would involve us putting an amendment into this bill.

Chair J. Lee: We will look at what we want to change. It will be adding to the bill we currently
have the re-engrossed- one the 6000 version. But we can go back and for a start at what
was in the original bill and then work from there through whatever we want to.

Senator Heckaman: I'd like to see some peer to peer funding back in on that, because we
heard about the importance of that. I'm not sure they’re paid. We should put some back in
on that too.

Chair J. Lee: Pam had an idea about seed program. The one with corrections in behavioral
health, that might serve people who are released to several placed in the state, so it is not
just the one location kind of deal. But | don’t know if we can do that here.

Senator Anderson: Spend any time in Appropriations, is there the possibility that various
policy committees ought to get their ideas in mind where if this happens to be any additional
funds that we could say we want this to be our first priority that you would make.

Chair J. Lee: We're not going to see. You'll recall it was sent out with the dollars in it, what
can we start with, Rep Hogan started with peer to peer.

Senator Anderson: The department apply 1915i waiver, if we get that, how is the funding
for that different than what'’s in the 14 or 15M in this bill?

Chair J. Lee: We may have to have that explained for us too.
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Senator Anderson: Would that have to be added someplace else in the next session, or
would that waiver if they receive it, be automatically funded or how does that work? Because
it's a 50-50 deal same as MA match.

Senator Kreun: Is the 1915i a 50 -50 match if you get that too, that waiver?

Senator Anderson: | think it would be the same as the rest of our Medicaid, which right now
is 50-50.

Senator Kreun: That determines how wealthy a state we are.

Chair J. Lee: The other thing Rep Hogan, said was direct support. | would like to also add
for our consideration, the direct support.

Senator Piepkorn: If this Is the right time for that explain about the peer to peer support
program?

Chair J. Lee: Regroup, people in recovery addicted to chemical substances or alcohol be
able to be a support person for someone beginning their recovery. They’ve been successful
there, working with a plan developed by an educated counselor, be able to connect a bit.

V-Chair Larsen: The cost of administrative cost, director, volunteer, mechanics of the
administration to keep to run. | don’t think it's a wage thing.

Senator Anderson: | heard this from 1 individual, she didn’t think these volunteers should
be unpaid. They should be fully funded. She is really the only one who said that. But |
wondering whether this model was with a training and | think the $15 M or $2M was to put
an individual in each human service center. My perception of that was then they would train
these peer-to-peer support people who are volunteering. But, McCleary seemed to think they
should all be paid. | didn’t know.

V-Chair Larsen: That's one above the $1.9 million, not funding to pay for each peer-to peer
person in the trenches.

Senator Piepkorn: Is this mainly then to do with addiction and recovery?

Senator Heckaman: | know family to family is disability because | think family voices uses
that, so let's say you have a child that has cystic fibrosis, they try and connect you with other
families with the same situation, or families that can help out. | think it actually, sometimes
works into almost being a therapy, although | can’t call it a therapy because they are not
trained but you understand the conditions of this family going through and you're able to say
to the family well this is what we did in that situation, this is how we handle it. Gives families
some options that don’t cost them anything, | know family to family is used with children with
disabilities. The peer-to peer works the same, we have a few diabetes, benefit from peer to
peer for those kinds of individuals because you can tell what you did, in certain situations. |
think it is handled in a lot of situations but | think one of the more important uses is in addiction
and behaviors like that.
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Chair J. Lee: We heard a bit about this and we heard about early intervention how important
support is.

Senator Clemens: Looking in original bill, it says must be used for emotional, behavioral
and mental.

Chair J. Lee: Yes, it does. It says for emotional behavioral and mental health needs. So in
this case it is specific.

Senator Piepkorn: it could be very important for veteran’s organizations too, of course. But
this is how a healthy society should really work. Maybe you have some paid administrators
doing some of the set-up. I'd like to see the budget because there has to be a certain amount
of money spent on advertising and promoting and letting people know that it is around.

Chair J. Lee: There’s no marketing money in there. It is a secret agent deal, but we don'’t
market it at all.

Senator Piepkorn: \We help each other whether it be through church or neighbors or different
organizations.

Senator Heckaman: | think these stakeholder groups have their information on the 211
website. | would guess they have a lot of different resources, Family Voices Pathfinder,
Pathfinder Parent Organization was one that was huge, and now it's sort of lost its traction
on working with families, but the children’s mental health peer to peer they might be on 211.

Chair J. Lee: Some of those aren’t for profit providers of services, | think it's important for
them to be on there, on every lottery ticket, every veteran service, all guard, place for info is
211. To be able to add links about services being provided there’s some real value of the.
But Cass County and United Way, they've backed out of First Light because they just figure
the state ought to be doing this. | am extremely disappointed about that, but they've had a
terrible hit.

Senator Heckaman: I've directed constituents to 211, it was valuable information.
Senator Piepkorn: The 211 didn’t get completely un-funded.

Chair J. Lee: No, but now they have to fundraise. United Way pulled out $100,000 out of it.
But the thing is they have never been in the fund raising business before. Now they have to

go out and raise money.

Senator Piepkorn: Do you think there will be any resistance. This 70,000 is not just to
maintain their current level of service but to improve it.

Chair J. Lee: This would be to add the additional services. Looking at original 1040 that the
section on the alcohol and drug education program, DHS is going to be just doing it internally,
which is Section 2 actually.
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V-Chair Larsen: | did not think $70,000 was to shore up their funding. | thought the $70,000
was to hire 2 more full time people that do that data base.

Chair J. Lee: It is they are raising money but the thing is no slush fund because they have
working their hard to be able to catch up with this cut they got from United Way is funding
books to children and daycare. 211 used to be a direct service provided by United Way, and
Cass Clay and was for decades. At that time, it was regional United Way of Cass Clay,
Hotline in Fargo/ Moorhead, evolved into 211 when the Mental Health Association federal
money to establish 211 programs. Never did what needed to be done to it. You kind of need
to be able to do that. 4 weeks max, Cindy got a phone call, new phone system, they stepped
up, and the staff and they figured out how they were going to take over the statewide 211
system. When they had had nothing to do with it before. They were just doing Cass and Clay,
and they did it seamlessly done and the Mental Health Association got out of it, and First Link
went into it and that’s what happened. So they rescued 211, its gone well, so keeping it going
is a challenge. No funding from state at any modest level that you could count on from year
to year.

Senator Piepkorn: | see United Way of Cass/Clay’s point in that now it is a statewide thing,
so maybe United Way of Bismarck and Williston.

Chair J. Lee: | do to, but quite frankly the state budget is in worse shape than the economy
for the Fargo/ Moorhead United Way. Only $200,000 to early intervention pilot project, peer
to peer and family support, we’ll need to think about if it sounds ok, we'll leave it until
tomorrow.
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Pam Sagness, DHS This bill was from interim committee, looking at the 2"¢ engrossment
sections 1 and 2, are related to alcohol and drug education programs, should | give a brief
overview of those?

Chair J. Lee: We know about the youth DUI thing from section 2, where we need the most
help, we might be receptive to the idea of putting things back in. Is there anything you would
suggest as a start to build on?

Ms. Sagness: Specific to looking at peer support services, there is a bit of confusion on who
the target audience would be. We fund Parent to Parent and Family to Family, Parent to
Parent services aren’t for the client, Family to Family it supports the family, it's not peer to
peer services, in regard to Peer to Peer, which is sometimes called recovery coaches are an
evidenced based model. Our addiction program is acute model to treat a chronic disease;
which isn’t effective. Peer to Peer expands and changes that acute focus to being something
that’s chronic disease management. It's provided by peers with lived experience, whether
that’s from serious mental illness or addiction; we expand services beyond what's provided
in a treatment center. It's more cost effective; we’re looking at paraprofessionals and
individuals with learned experience. That's very important in the concept of what Peer to Peer
is. It's who's available, your addiction counselor isn’t available at 6PM on a Friday. We lack
services that are ongoing and long-term. If you compare to diabetes, we wrap around those
services, diabetes educator, it's the same thing with addiction; that's why this section is a
recommendation. | have our Behavioral Health Assessment, Please Visit
https://www.nd.gov/dhs/info/pubs/docs/mhsa/nd-behavioral-health-assessment.pdf

(Attachment # 6) this came out of the research that had been done on the system. The
recommendations are specific to the gaps in ND, most of research has been done in North
Dakota has been only in that area of treatment when we look at the continuum, the gaps are
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prevention and early intervention, and recovery supports. Treating addiction and serious
mental illness like a chronic disease, medication can be forever.

Chair J. Lee: The Peer to Peer and Family to Family, do we see the same kind of things
being effective with mental iliness?

Ms. Sagness: Absolutely, lone of the requirements in our code is that we focus on having
recovery centers, locations to find that peer support, it's considered a best practice also.

Senator Heckaman: Going back to section 2 in the 2"¥ engrossment of HB 1040, it says the
Department shall adopt rules for the drug education program, are you expecting them to be
delivered in Human Service Centers through their funding, contract, grants or all of those?

Ms. Sagness: This is the most misunderstood areas. Currently in North Dakota if an
adolescent gets a minor in possession or minor in consumption charge, it's required that they
receive education as an opportunity of early intervention. However, there was no authority or
funding aligned to that section, so at this point in time, there’s no one who follows through
with that; there’s no baseline for what does that service look like. Depending on the area
there are different services available. Our intent is to continue for private providers to provide
this service but to improve access to private providers. Currently there is no minimum
standard, no oversight. | hope at some point in time we consider substance abuse to be on
an equal footing with health care.

Chair J. Lee: This would permit you to adopt rules so that the providers would have to meet
certain criteria, and there would be a program through which they should be working to
provide that service.

Ms. Sagness: That's correct, and the payment is from the child, there was a $10,000
appropriation, in a section that was removed from this bill. We believe that our current funding
that we receive for our substance abuse prevention and treatment block grant does actually
fit this mission, we can provide this training to all providers who are current providers, but
also to expand the service beyond those current providers. One of the things we've done is
recognize the need for our local public health units to be integrated with behavioral health.
We have been providing funding to the local public health units for the past 7 years, educating
them on substance abuse prevention and recognizing this as part of the health care system.
Our providers are interesting in this program, which would increase access in rural areas.

Senator Kreun: In these prevention and early behavior sessions do we require the parents
to be with the student?

Ms. Sagness: That would be determined in the administrative code, for example we would
look at best practice. There are models for youth that are primarily youth component and a
family component. If determined a best practice, we can establish in rule.

Senator Kreun: From my experience, if you can have the parent there, it's very inconvenient
for them to be there and participate in that, and it's way more effective.

Chair J. Lee: You might be able to do a portion of both.
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Senator Kreun: At least a good portion of that should be required because it's an eye
opener.

Senator Piepkorn: In section 1, on the re-engrossed bill, the violator will be taking a visit for
which he has to pay? How can you force someone to pay for this?

Chair J. Lee: The point is if they're violating the law, they’re going to be in court. If they had
done damage some place they would be expected to pay restitution. There is a responsibility,
there will be a need for consequences, I'm not troubled by that.

V-Chair Larsen: When | was teaching high school, students getting minor in possession,
they had to go to a month long class, but this is for a behavioral health class, | think they're
already doing that.

Ms. Sagness: In some places in the state they're already doing it but there’s no minimum
standard for it, so anyone can say they’re doing a first offender program and the content can
be whatever they choose. We want to increase access, this in the realm of private providers,
it opens up the door for local public health. As far as the fee, it might be $75, the classes are
sometimes 1 day others are ongoing, and that's why we need a conversation about what'’s
best practice so there’s some standard. Adults are trusting their children to be alone in these
programs, the fee is already current, it's happening these just no minimum standard.

Senator Piepkorn: What about trying to intervene at an earlier age before they get in trouble.
Is there any program or evidence that this can be successful?

Ms. Sagness: Senator Lee had asked me to provide information about prevention in North
Dakota. When it comes to substance abuse prevention in our state we have dollars working
towards substance abuse prevention. In the report (attachment #5), you'll see that for the last
decade our numbers are decreasing. We're having an effect; we are making change. We
can'’t say the same for mental health. That's what the study looks at, we don’t have dollars in
prevention or resiliency, those are the areas where we're not seeing progress. So we look at
behavioral health as a whole, we can say substance abuse is having an impact. Those dollars
are federal dollars, our behavioral health division has been writing grants to obtain federal
funding in order to address these issues. This is called the Strategic Prevention Framework
State Incentive Grant (SPF SIG); this program was a $1.94M per year for five years. This is
a summary of that grant Please see attachment #1 We are currently finishing up the analysis
of this program it just ended in September of this year, you will see the strategies and funding
(19:30-20:20) walked through the infographic. Then wrote a follow up grant, we were
awarded this grant last year, The Strategic Prevention Framework Partnership for Success
Grant (SPF PSG). Please see attachment #2, (20:40-22:00) Listed awardees and amounts
from the Partnership for Success Grant (22:10-23:20).

Senator Kreun: What does that mean, current capacity?

Ms. Sagness: Some of the grantees way that in order for them to do this initiative, they need
workforce, they don’t feel they have the workforce to manage this. At the time there was a



Senate Human Services Committee
HB 1040

3/8/17

Page 4

TB breakout in Grand Forks, Standing Rock this summer when the funding came available,
they felt they would have difficulty managing.

Chair J. Lee: We get this money every year for 5 years, and this is the first year.

Senator Heckaman: Were there a higher number of applicants? OR did every applicant get
an opportunity?

Ms. Sagness: The grantees were chosen, because they had to have completed the SPF
SIG grant, so we had the pool of grantees, then we used the formula that's on the front;
where’s the highest need, we are still working with the other grantees, Fargo has resources
and they didn’t have the highest rates.

Chair J. Lee: The money ought to go where there aren’t resources.

Ms. Sagness: The one state program that we have focuses on drinking and driving. Several
sessions ago there was an appropriation that was put in the DUI legislation to create an
underage drinking prevention effort, evidence based, start to look at how to not enforce our
way out but also educating and changing. Spoke about Parent's Lead (25:55-27:35).
Displayed media and education products the Department has developed (28:00-29:10)
distributed new data books, please see attachment #3 (29:30-30:50); 1 other publication, in
partnership with North Dakota Cares effort, we create the North Dakota Military data booklet,
please see attachment #4 (31:05-33:50).

Senator Heckaman: Are these on 211?

Ms. Sagness: I'm not sure if 211 links to these resource or not. 211 is on our website, | don't
know if we're on theirs. Handed out infographic on substance exposed newborns (please
see attachment #5) (35:20-37:15).

Chair J. Lee: If | could have 4 packets of that to share, that would be excellent. We could
put the links on FirstLink.

Ms. Sagness: None of this includes our stop overdose campaign. We have resources
targeted to individuals based on their need. We have handouts specific to pharmacists who
want to prescribe naloxone. We have resources for family members who have a loved one
with an addiction. We did launch the first North Dakota substance use data driven website.
We have overlaid data from DPI, DoH, and some national data sets. You can search by
region, drug, and age. That’s a tool for local strategic planners and grant writers, substance
Use North Dakota (SUND).

Senator Heckaman: With all the great data, where would be one spot you would like to put
a pile of money to be most effective.

Ms. Sagness: The most important thing is support the full continuum. Our gaps right now
are recovery services and prevention and early intervention. So when we look at funding, I'm
concerned about Parent’s Lead, if Parent’s Lead is removed, do we have to turn the website
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off? We provide resources statewide. It stops duplication. The Fargo mayor’s panel doesn'’t
need to create resources; they can use ours. All of our info is public domain.

Chair J. Lee: How much funding to make sure Parent’s Lead is maintained?

Ms. Sagness: Our budget proposal was $231,000; we believe we can maintain all the
resources that are current. 40% of requests are for Parent’s Lead materials.

Chair J. Lee: How about peer's support? Peer to Peer and Family to Family? Is there
something we can discuss around?

Ms. Sagness: For transparency, | was asked about some dollar amount, my
recommendation was actually $400,000 - $500,000 to do a pilot with school, it's important to
not only focus in an urban area, | want to make sure I've been clear. As far as Peer to Peer
it would be difficult to say, | don’t want to say an inadequate amount. For comparison to our
budget, we currently fund $75,000 to each, they don’t have enough for the biennium.

Senator Kreun: Are all of these programs all through the Health Department or Human
Services?

Ms. Sagness: All of them are through HSD budget, the best fit for local prevention is actually
public health. Human Service Centers provides treatment services. The 1915i contract, we
currently have contract with vendor to assess North Dakota’'s needs for a 1915i state plan
amendment. It's not a waiver but a state plan amendment. The assessment hasn’t produced
numbers; the one this fall talked about penetration rates, of the individuals that need services,
how many are getting them? In order to do a 1915i, we need details; who should be served,
what types of services should be provided. None of which we have so far. People were
confused, we're getting to the point where we can write a fiscal note. By September they are
to produce a final report that says these are the populations and services that are the most
significant gaps, this is the number that we would need to look at to write a fiscal note.

Senator Anderson: Originally there was $12.5M from us and $12.5 federal funds; how does
that section compare with your 1015i plan?

Ms. Sagness: That exactly what we need to find out from the assessment. The contract will
tell us, here’s the biggest gap you have.

Senator Anderson: Once you get the information, you can write a fiscal note, we can do
something next session, you wouldn't start spending the money in September.

Ms. Sagness: we sat down to write a fiscal not this summer, we don'’t have the information
to adequately write a note.

Senator Anderson: It'd be ahead of ourselves if we say we’d like to fund what was in this.
Ms. Sagness: If there was one take-home point, we need criminal justice reform, right now

we can take them out, but there's no resources in their home, we can’t expect things to
change. We have to invest as we reduce, we can'’t open the doors.
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Chair J. Lee: We can't do section 7 even if we wanted to.
Ms. Sagness: That will be what the assessment is for.

Chair J. Lee: If we're going to be coming with an amendment to 1040 that will have some
credibility, we've talked about the fact that the department will take care of that minor DUI
event, we've got the developing rules, $10,000, that's ok?

Ms. Sagness: We're ok with that removal.

Chair J. Lee: Move over to children’s prevention and early intervention services, that’s the
one where we need to have the $400,000-$500,000; and then the behavioral health database
and FirstLink; they’re not going to be able to distribute the information like they have in the
past.

Ms. Sagness | think this is an area there was a list being compiled by Heartview, recently
there was a letter sent out saying they have developed this directory. They feel they have
produced that list; they were going to be reaching out to FirstLink. | heard Cindy’s testimony
| can’t say its apples to apples, but that conversation has occurred.

Chair J. Lee: Maybe we need to check with Kurt Snyder.

Senator Anderson: | feel a lot more comfortable putting the dollars in that the department
says they need. I'm comfortable defending the numbers were heard today.

Chair J. Lee: We are the ones establishing the priorities. | have never believed that we
should send it over there to cut the numbers. We should establish the priorities; we may
disagree; but we've got a list now of things that would be worthwhile to look at.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; and to provide an appropriation to the DHS.

Minutes: 1 Attachment

Chair J. Lee: There shouldn’t be any trouble with section 2, section 3, they said they really
need $400,000-$500,000 to do that early intervention, they wanted Parent's Lead to be
restored, 40% of the requests are for this. FirstLink was taken out of this as well.

Senator Heckaman: And Peer to Peer and Family to Family. We were going to look at that.

Chair J. Lee: The old original which was 04000, 1915i is not a waiver, it's a plan amendment,
they are gathering information for that which affects section 7. We are ok on sections 1, 2, 3.
The original section 5 was a FirstLink database, somebody said Heartview developed a list,
if that’s true, that would make a difference, but they are not a statewide network. Peer to Peer
was original section 6, that was the one with no funding right now. That was a real priority for
folks. They're not ready for section 7 yet.

V-Chair Larsen: Was there something in language that if funds came available it could be
funded. | know this week they're talking about oil going through the DAPL pipeline and that
would increase $3 a barrel. | don’t know if funding will come available in the next biennium
or not, if we don’t have anything in it, they won'’t, but language for if funds become available.

Chair J. Lee: I've asked about triggers, and they said not yet.
V-Chair Larsen: After the budget review we had there's no way that any of this will happen.
Senator Heckaman: We can put in a contingency; Council can figure out how to word that.

If revenues increase a certain amount, and we would know how much money that would be,
we could take a small portion of that and fund some of this.



Senate Human Services Committee
HB 1040

3/13/17

Page 2

Chair J. Lee: We could say up to a certain amount of money could be dedicated to whatever.
I'd like to consider doing that since we do have the projections.

V-Chair Larsen: | don't think those projections were tied to the additional savings we would
get by using the pipeline, maybe it was listed in there, | didn’t hear that. We know there's a
certain number of barrels leaving the state, | don’t know if the rates were attached to that.
There's a $3/barrel increase by using pipeline than by rail.

Senator Heckaman: If you go to original, 04000 version, section 7, if we’re able to put money
in, that generates federal funds.

Chair J. Lee: They're not ready for it yet. They have to work on the 1915i plan amendment.
Could we put it in Peer to Peer?

Senator Heckaman: They asked for $75K for each program; and then we can put
contingency in for the $1.92M.

Chair J. Lee: Should we ask whoever drafted 1040 to come chat with us?

V-Chair Larsen: Is that the $75K for the 211 system?

Chair J. Lee: $75K for Peer to Peer and $75K for Family to Family, in section 6.

Senator Anderson: | could defend putting money into section 4, that has behavioral health
services for children and preventions services. In order to get ahead of this, we need to up
our prevention services somehow.

Chair J. Lee: You're right, what we have in there is $200,000, they need $400,000-$500,00.
Chair J. Lee: recapped (9:50-14:30)

V-Chair Larsen: Is there an entity that gathers that information, like the chamber of
commerce?

Chair J. Lee: This has to do with treatment providers, it's information and referral, they are
the licensed suicide call responders. Firstlink, they would have the provider list.

Senator Kreun: They’ll compile the list and keep it current.

Senator Anderson: Some insurance company that pays all these people and they would
know who they are.

Chair J. Lee: The person would be Pam, she will have to list of people who are reimbursable
and licensed.

Senator Kreun: FirstLink, they need the money to get the list, they need to keep it current,
that's a full time person.
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V-Chair Larsen: If people are changing providers, they always ask me, can | use my same
doctor, | wonder if BCBS has the list of who's in the network, that spread sheet would be able
to go to them.

Senator Heckaman: There’s so much they can't give out.

V-Chair Larsen: When they're looking for dental insurance, | can go to each provider, is this
dentist in network, Sanford is already prior authorization, they have a list, that isn’t a hard
thing to transfer.

Chair J. Lee: We're kind of on the same page, lan put the parts together, I'll find out about
the FirstLink Heartview part of the database, so that will all be in one amendment.

Senator Heckaman: Where's Parent’s Lead going in?

Chair J. Lee: | have that in section 3.

Senator Anderson: What about the contingency?

Chair J. Lee: | can take care of that.

Senator Piepkorn: Do you chose a figure?

Chair J. Lee: We'll have some thought in mind about the fiscal picture.

Attachment #1 provided for committee’s reference.
Chair J. Lee: Closed the hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; and to provide an appropriation to the DHS.

Minutes:

No attachments

Chair J. Lee: Brought the meeting to order, all members were present.

The committee discussed a variety of possible amendments to the bill, including
creating a contingency section for funding for: Peer to Peer and Family to Family
programs, the 2-1-1 program, and Parent’s Lead. They agreed to have an amendment
drafted with a contingency plan for $75K to each of Peer to Peer and Family to Family,
$70K to 2-1-1, and $400K to Parent’s Lead, for review in the afternoon.

Chair J. Lee: Closed the meeting.




2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Human Services Committee
Red River Room, State Capitol

HB 1040
3/20/2017
Job Number 29454

0 Subcommittee
[0 Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature WW/ ZQW]

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A bill relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; and to provide an appropriation to the DHS.

Minutes: 2 attachments

Chair J. Lee: Brought the meeting to order, all members present.

Chair J. Lee: (0:30-1:50) Please see attachment #1. Walked through the amendment.
Section 1 and 2 are the same, section 3; children’s prevention and early intervention
appropriated $400k with contingency provision.

Senator Piepkorn: [f they exceed the projection by at least $5M.

Chair J. Lee: That’s the advice from Legislative Council about how the language should be
put in if we're going to do this contingency appropriation.

Senator Piepkorn: The $5M, it's got to be some figure | guess.
Chair J. Lee: There’s got to be more in there than what we're asking for.

V-Chair Larsen: If $3M start coming in, that's not enough to hit the trigger, if they didn’t have
that in there, if we had money coming in, who's first in line.

Chair J. Lee: Peer to Peer support services gets $75K.
Senator Heckaman: Is FirstLInk in there?
Chair J. Lee: Doesn’t look like it. Senator Larsen didn'’t like that one.

V-Chair Larsen: They'’re already building that database.
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Chair J. Lee: We've got Peer to Peer and Family to Family, we've got early intervention.
We've left out the $70K for FirstLink.

Senator Piepkorn: | thought had a consensus that we maintain that FirstLink database.
Chair J. Lee: What are the feelings of others?

V-Chair Larsen: | highly doubt they will put 2 more employees anywhere. | can’t figure out
how they got 12 employees on the Measure 5 bill. | don’t see them moving forward with 2
people.

Chair J. Lee: Who got 5 employees?

V-Chair Larsen: The Health Department got 5 employees for the Marijuana bill. It is beyond
me how they moved forward with those folks.

Senator Anderson: | think | agree with Sen Larsen, we've identified that most of the
information should be available, it's a matter of bringing it together, | think we should let that
go, and let the people who are involved with this to do that without hiring two additional people
to do that.

Senator Piepkorn: | think we should put the request in, the statewide 211 service, that
information is scattered around, it's not in one place.

Senator Piepkorn: | move amend in 70k for 211.
V-Chair Larsen: Second.

Senator Clemens: The two employees you are talking about, what are they for?

Chair J. Lee: That was additional funding to 2-1-1 to enable them to add the for profit
providers to their data base.

Senator Anderson: | think that was a testimony from Firstlink, they said it would take two
additional employees to develop that database.

V-Chair Larsen: As we went down the road, we found out there are entities developing the
database, all providers have a provider list, just a matter of them giving the information to 2-
1-1.

Senator Anderson: gave an example from Board of Pharmacy.

Roll call vote taken.

Motion passes 4-3-0.

Senator Heckaman: | Move to Adopt the Amendments.

V-Chair Larsen: Second.

A roll call vote was taken.

Motion passes 6-1-0.

Senator Heckaman: | move Do Pass as Amended and re-refer to Appropriations.
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V-Chair Larsen: Second.

A roll call vote was taken.
Motion passes 6-1-0.
Senator Heckaman will carry.

Before the bill was turned into the floor, the committee reconsidered their actions,
there is no standing committee report.

Chair J. Lee: closed the meeting.

Attachment #2 provided for committee reference.
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Minutes: 1 Attachment

Senator Heckaman: On the section 7 that was deleted in the House, that’s a very important
part of services across North Dakota. It has nothing to do with 1915i. 1915i is a different
program, funded in a different manner. Rep., Hogan wanted to make sure the money was
there for 1915i, if we don’t put section 7 back in, there will be no money. | met with Maggie
and the new director, section 7 has to be fully funded, a little money won't help. It has to be
whole plan. It's a statewide plan for adults and children for services. The 1915i is separate
from that, the reason October 1%t is in here, it will take them a while to get everything ready,
after they get this money. We got a document from Maggie (please see attachment #1), the
total of $12,196,834 with equal matching federal funds to provide services for adults and
children. The services for adults for behavioral and mental issues will be covered by DOCR.
There’s $7M in there for that. This part of the bill, asks for $5M for adults. It asks for $7M with
a $7M match for children. There are no services for children provided in any of the budgets
right now. It's important that we take $7,037,998.38 and get an equal match from the federal
government to provide mental and behavioral health services for children. We don'’t know
where that money is going to come from. Without that, we bypass everyone up to the age of
=

Chair J. Lee: There is no active bill with services for children.

Senator Heckaman: | think it's important to put this in. It's all or nothing. If we put in $2M,
they have to deficit spend to come up with the other $5M, they have to match to total part for
the children and the total for adults. Somehow the Department would have to come in with
$7M exactly. They can split the program between adults and children, but they can’t split the
children’s program apart. We have to have all the $7M or none. If we have none, we don'’t
have services for behavioral and mental health services for children. | think that's important.
| think we need to put that back in. In addition to the amendments, | think we need to add
another section to this bill.

Chair J. Lee: We need to reconsider our actions.
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Senator Heckaman: | move to reconsider.
Senator Piepkorn: Second.
Voice vote, motion carries.

Senator Anderson: The reference to the 1915i waiver was in Rep. Hogan’s testimony, when
she talks about the original section 7. Maggie reinforced the fact that they weren'’t going to
have the details ready to move ahead until the end of September, the combination of those
2 things is where it came from.

Chair J. Lee: It turns out that for whatever reason, there's no reason to worry about the one
FTE there, they are already down 104, so another one doesn’t really make that much
difference. | realize that we try to be careful about the money, it's also really a shame if we
don’t have any programs that provide services for 0-21. It's up to us to decide whether or not
we're going to do this, but it seems to me that it's worthy of our consideration.

Senator Heckaman: Do we amend our amendment?

Senator Heckaman: | move to further amend amendment to include $7M for children’s
services.

Chair J. Lee: This is the original section 7, with $7M for children’s services for 0-21 years
of age.

Senator Anderson: | don't like to spend money when we don’t need to, with the impetus on
mental health, I'm not familiar with the Human Services budget, | think this would give the
policy committee the ability to say to the Appropriations Committee, we need to increase the
mental health funding and this is one option to do it. | think everybody, leadership etc., is
looking for ways to try to solve this. We need to do something.

Senator Piepkorn: Second.
Senator Clemens: We're putting $7M in to get $7M from federal?

Chair J. Lee: It's a 50-50 match. If we put $7M in, Maggie said they can do some shifting
within that to apply to various programs for behavioral health, they do have latitude as to how
the funds are dispersed.

Senator Clemens: If Approps says $4M, that's what we’'d get back?
Chair J. Lee: No. It's all or nothing.

Senator Heckaman: When she applies to the program it has to have the dollars they figured
out that are needed in all the 8 Human Services Centers to deliver the program, it can’'t be a
piecemeal program, it has to be across the whole state. The 1915i they can piecemeal it out.
This one has to have equal access across all 8 Human Service Centers; the plan says this
is the amount they need for children. They can piecemeal between children and adults, but
they can’t whittle the children’s down any further. If they can’t get $7M no amount will help.
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Chair J. Lee: The attachment lists number of children who are likely to be users and average
usage. That's how they arrived at that number.

Senator Clemens: When you say there's nothing for severely mentally ill children, what are
you referring to there?

Chair J. Lee: We have the corrections budget, 2274 that moved into the corrections budget
that’'s behavioral health for adults who are released from incarceration, right now that’s the
only active additional money for new adult behavioral health treatment that's going on. We
don’t have any other new money for adults, right now we have zero dollars for children’s
services.

Senator Clemens: For new money.

Chair J. Lee: Yes. We have existing programs, but they are experiencing cuts.

V-Chair Larsen: This population group to be served is in the Medicaid population, correct?

Chair J. Lee: Yes.

Senator Heckaman: In the attachment, for adults there would be 22,800 adults, if they got
the money for adults; for children it's about 3,917. They assume that 50% are eligible for MA
it's the 1,636 kids, and 8,241 adults.

Chair J. Lee: They know from their data, how many children and adults there are.

Senator Kreun: You were indicating some of this money could be moved around, where
does the 1915i request come in? Are they still going to start this process?

Chair J. Lee: That relates to the state plan, it's not a waiver. That is not what this is.

Senator Kreun: You mentioned they wouldn’t be ready until September, what happens to
1915i?

Senator Heckaman: All these plans have an implementation time, if this bill passes, and
they can apply, it takes a while. That's why the October date was in here. There was not
supposed to be anything about 1915i in this bill.

Chair J. Lee: | agree, it was in Rep. Hogan’s testimony, it talks about the 1915i, the
Department has told us that it isn’t a waiver, it's a plan amendment, that needs to be corrected
in our minds.

Senator Anderson: With the plan modifications, they have to go to the feds, and be
approved. That would be in the budget for the next biennium. Once we get data together to
ask the feds for a plan change, then that wouldn’t come in until the next biennium.

Senator Kreun: Where are we in that process, | realize it isn’'t a part of this.
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Chair J. Lee: We were confused, that terminology turned us around.
Senator Kreun: That would be part of the normal process, to get this in our plan.

A roll call vote was taken.
Motion passes 7-0-0.

Senator Heckaman: | move do pass as amended and re refer to Appropriations.
Senator Piepkorn: Second.

Senator Anderson: With the impetus for the mental health, | support this, this is a way to
accomplish this.

Roll call vote was taken.
Motion passes 6-1-0.
Senator Heckaman will carry.

Chair J. Lee: Closed the meeting.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1040
Page 1, line 5, remove "to provide for a report; and"
Page 1, line 5, replace "an appropriation" with "appropriations"

Page 1, line 6, after "services" insert "; to provide contingent appropriations to the department
of human services; and to provide for a report to the legislative management"

Page 1, line 24, replace "$200,000" with "$400,000"

Page 2, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 4. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - CHILDRENS' PREVENTION AND EARLY
INTERVENTION BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES. If actual general fund revenues
for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 exceed estimated general fund
revenue projections for the same period by at least $5 million as determined by the
office of management and budget, there is appropriated out of any moneys in the
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $1,556,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for
the purpose of establishing prevention and early intervention behavioral health services
for children, including services for children suffering from the effects of behavioral
health issues, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. For
purposes of this section, "estimated general fund revenues" excludes transfers to the
general fund from the strategic investment and improvements fund, Bank of North
Dakota profits, property tax relief fund, the lottery, the mill and elevator, and gas tax
administration.

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DATABASE. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $70,000, or
so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for the
purpose of providing a grant to an organization administering statewide 2-1-1 services
to create a behavioral health provider database of profit and nonprofit organizations, for
the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.

SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $75,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for
the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer support organization, for
the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. Funds awarded must
be used for providing recovery and peer support services to individuals with emotional,
behavioral, or mental health needs.

SECTION 7. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES. If
actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 exceed
estimated general fund revenue projections for the same period by at least $5 million
as determined by the office of management and budget, there is appropriated out of
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any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the "~ & A
sum of $125,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of

human services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer

support organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30,

2019. Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support services

to individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs. For purposes of this

section, "estimated general fund revenues" excludes transfers to the general fund from

the strategic investment and improvements fund, Bank of North Dakota profits,

property tax relief fund, the lottery, the mill and elevator, and gas tax administration.

SECTION 8. APPROPRIATION- DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys
in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$75,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human
services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide family-to-family support
organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.
Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support services to
individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs.

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES.
If actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018
exceed estimated general fund revenue projections for the same period by at least
$5 million as determined by the office of management and budget, there is
appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise
appropriated, the sum of $125,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the
department of human services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide
family-to-family support organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer
support services to individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs. For
purposes of this section, "estimated general fund revenues" excludes transfers to the
general fund from the strategic investment and improvements fund, Bank of North
Dakota profits, property tax relief fund, the lottery, the mill and elevator, and gas tax
administration."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 17.0183.06001
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1040
Page 1, line 5, after "report" insert "to the legislative management"
Page 1, line 5, remove "and"
Page 1, line 5, remove "to the department of"
Page 1, line 6, replace "human services" with "; and to provide a contingent appropriation"”
Page 1, line 24, replace "$200,000" with "$400,000"
Page 2, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 4. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - CHILDRENS' PREVENTION AND EARLY
INTERVENTION BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES. If actual general fund revenues
for the period July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, exceed estimated general fund
revenue projections for the same period by at least $5,000,000 as determined by the
office of management and budget, there is appropriated out of any moneys in the
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $1,556,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for
the purpose of establishing prevention and early intervention behavioral health services
for children, including services for children suffering from the effects of behavioral
health issues, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. For
purposes of this section, "estimated general fund revenues" excludes transfers to the
general fund from the strategic investment and improvements fund, bank of North
Dakota profits, property tax relief fund, the lottery, the mill and elevator, and gas tax
administration.

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DATABASE. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $70,000, or
so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for the
purpose of providing a grant to an organization administering statewide 2-1-1 services
to create a behavioral health provider database of profit and nonprofit organizations, for
the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.

SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $75,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for
the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer support organization, for
the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. Funds awarded must
be used for providing recovery and peer support services to individuals with emotional,
behavioral, or mental health needs.

SECTION 7. CONTINGENT: GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES. If
actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018,
exceed estimated general fund revenue projections for the same period by at least
$5,000,000 as determined by the office of management and budget, there is
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appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise )
appropriated, the sum of $125,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, tothe L ¢
department of human services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide
peer-to-peer support organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending

June 30, 2019. Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support
services to individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs. For

purposes of this section, "estimated general fund revenues" excludes transfers to the

general fund from the strategic investment and improvements fund, bank of North

Dakota profits, property tax relief fund, the lottery, the mill and elevator, and gas tax
administration.

SECTION 8. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys
in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$75,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human
services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide family-to-family support
organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.
Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support services to
individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs.

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES.
If actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018,
exceed estimated general fund revenue projections for the same period by at least
$5,000,000 as determined by the office of management and budget, there is
appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise
appropriated, the sum of $125,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the
department of human services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide
family-to-family support organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer
support services to individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs. For
purposes of this section, "estimated general fund revenues" excludes transfers to the
general fund from the strategic investment and improvements fund, bank of North
Dakota profits, property tax relief fund, the lottery, the mill and elevator, and gas tax
administration.

SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum
of $7,037,998, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and from special funds
derived from federal funds and other income, the sum of $7,037,998, or so much of the
sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for the purpose of
expanding target case management services beginning October 1, 2017, to allow
designated behavioral health providers to provide targeted case management services
for individuals with severe mental illness and individuals with severe emotional
disturbance, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 20, 2019."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 17.0183.06002
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1040, as reengrossed: Human Services Committee (Sen.J.Lee, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (6 YEAS,
1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Reengrossed HB 1040 was placed on the
Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 5, after "report" insert "to the legislative management"

Page 1, line 5, remove "and"

Page 1, line 5, remove "to the department of"

Page 1, line 6, replace "human services" with "; and to provide a contingent appropriation"
Page 1, line 24, replace "$200,000" with "$400,000"

Page 2, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 4. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - CHILDRENS' PREVENTION AND EARLY
INTERVENTION BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES. If actual general fund
revenues for the period July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018, exceed estimated
general fund revenue projections for the same period by at least $5,000,000 as
determined by the office of management and budget, there is appropriated out of any
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum
of $1,556,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of
human services for the purpose of establishing prevention and early intervention
behavioral health services for children, including services for children suffering from
the effects of behavioral health issues, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. For purposes of this section, "estimated general fund
revenues" excludes transfers to the general fund from the strategic investment and
improvements fund, bank of North Dakota profits, property tax relief fund, the lottery,
the mill and elevator, and gas tax administration.

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DATABASE. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$70,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human
services for the purpose of providing a grant to an organization administering
statewide 2-1-1 services to create a behavioral health provider database of profit and
nonprofit organizations, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June
30, 2019.

SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$75,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human
services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer support
organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.
Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support services to
individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs.

SECTION 7. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES.
If actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018,
exceed estimated general fund revenue projections for the same period by at least
$5,000,000 as determined by the office of management and budget, there is
appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $125,000, or so much of the sum as may be
necessary, to the department of human services for the purpose of providing a grant

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_52_002
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to a statewide peer-to-peer support organization, for the biennium beginning July 1,
2017, and ending June 30, 2019. Funds awarded must be used for providing
recovery and peer support services to individuals with emotional, behavioral, or
mental health needs. For purposes of this section, "estimated general fund
revenues" excludes transfers to the general fund from the strategic investment and
improvements fund, bank of North Dakota profits, property tax relief fund, the lottery,
the mill and elevator, and gas tax administration.

SECTION 8. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum
of $75,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of
human services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide family-to-family
support organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30,
2019. Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support
services to individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs.

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION -
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES - FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT
SERVICES. If actual general fund revenues for the period July 1, 2017, through June
30, 2018, exceed estimated general fund revenue projections for the same period by
at least $5,000,000 as determined by the office of management and budget, there is
appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $125,000, or so much of the sum as may be
necessary, to the department of human services for the purpose of providing a grant
to a statewide family-to-family support organization, for the biennium beginning July
1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. Funds awarded must be used for providing
recovery and peer support services to individuals with emotional, behavioral, or
mental health needs. For purposes of this section, "estimated general fund
revenues" excludes transfers to the general fund from the strategic investment and
improvements fund, bank of North Dakota profits, property tax relief fund, the lottery,
the mill and elevator, and gas tax administration.

SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum
of $7,037,998, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and from special funds
derived from federal funds and other income, the sum of $7,037,998, or so much of
the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for the purpose
of expanding target case management services beginning October 1, 2017, to allow
designated behavioral health providers to provide targeted case management
services for individuals with severe mental illness and individuals with severe
emotional disturbance, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 20,
2019."

Renumber accordingly
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] Subcommittee
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 50-06 of the NDCC; relating
to an evidence —based alcohol and drug education program; relating to a penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; to provide for a report; and to provide an appropriation to the department of human
services.

Minutes: 1.Carlotta McCleary Testimony

2.MHAN Testimony submitted by Ms. McCleary
3.Siobhan Deppa Testimony

4 Marcia Hettich Testimony

5.Denise Harvey Testimony (for Teresa Larsen)
6.Bethany Mack Testimony

7.Jacki Keck Testimony

Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on HB 1040. All committee members
were present. Michael Johnson, Legislative Council and Becky Deichert, OMB were also
present. Our purpose is to focus on the dollars on 1040. Is anyone going to talk on 1040?

Senator Mathern: District 11 in Fargo, | served on the interim committee wherein many of
these issues were noted. | am assuming that the Chairman of Human services, Judy Lee,
will come in and testify when she can.

Chairman Holmberg: We will turn this over to the subcommittee so she can make a
presentation to them. (The subcommittee is Senator Kilzer, Chairman; Senators Erbele,
Dever and Mathern.)

Senator Mathern: That is an excellent idea, because all of these programs would be
monitored or funding through DHS. The first section — regarding evidenced-based alcohol
and drug education programs. The important word is evidenced-based for the Department
and our legislature to focus on that is an important part for our state. Section 2 — programs
we need to pay. Section 3 — pilot project, Children’s prevention and early intervention. Section
4 — General fund appropriation; Section 5 — Behavioral Health Database, they could call 2-
1-1 services all over the state; Section 6 — Peer-to-Peer Support Services. It is a small
amount but useful for encouraging and supporting people. This does not have to be a highly
paid professional. Someone who went through the program can do this as well. Section 7-
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Contingent general fund appropriation and Section 8 — Family-to-Family Support Services
and the funding for that is in Section 9. Section 10 relates to Targeted Case Management
Services. Itis meant for providers to help people get well. If they don't have someone helping
them, they get ill again and get referred back to the hospital. This Targeted Case
Management helps in that regard as we reduce hospital care which is much more expensive.
| would ask that you support this bill and refer this bill to the Department of Human Services.

Senator Kilzer: In the Human Service Budget, a couple of questions. Was this ever in the
HS budget? Does this fit with children and family services or more in behavioral health in a
different division?

Senator Mathern: | believe some of these programs were part of DHS. Possible optional. |
do believe the department has been meeting with the stake holder groups all during the
interim. | know they are related to all of the funding. In terms of children and family services.
There is a greater focus to children and family services in the general population of behavioral
health. The committee focused on children rather than we could address the needs of one
population group so it appears that the committee sort of focused on children versus the
general population. For example, case management for our general population would
probably cost more, on behavioral health would be more. Often times children and family
services has been viewed as a program for foster care, adoption, child protection services,
and those kinds of things. But | think this is extending that recognition that in Children and
Family services there are many behavioral health issues in addition to those traditional child
welfare services. It is recognizing a broader array of needs in the children. Yes, behavioral
health is expanded in the children’s area.

Senator Kilzer: There is a considerable increase in the budget. This amendment, or new
bill, doesn’t include any things that are in the increase that was proposed. You say this new
bill doesn’t include any of the things that are already included in the increase that is
proposed?

Senator Mathern: This is additional to what we have seen in the children’s and family
services, budget line items in HB1012.

Chairman Holmberg: The original bill coming out of the interim committee had about 15m
they reduced that down to $200,000, the whole bill. They are back at roughly 7.5 on general
fund and close to 2m of contingency money. The bill has gone through a lot of change. We
have a bill tomorrow, 1041, it is molted in the House. So we will see them both and both of
them will end up with the DHS subcommittee level.

Senator Dever: There are some programs currently in the Department of Human Services
that were either eliminated or reduced in the House. Parents Lead, Parent to Parent |
understand, Experienced parents. Are those programs to be considered in this same context
as these programs?

Senator Mathern: Yes, those are all important programs. Yes, there is great need out there.
| presume there are still people going to testify. What we have had is an in-depth review of
the behavioral health situation in ND, which has lead us to believe we have too many people
in prison, and need more services for behavioral health. Those behavioral health services
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are clinical in nature but also supported in nature. And what you supportive to families and
children in nature. What you have outlined is those supportive services that are needed. We
could have hospitals all over the state with many beds, but if we don’t’ have those underlying
supportive services in our communities, we would bankrupt ourselves. People would just be
going from hospital to hospital. | think this bill and the Senate Human Service Committee is
an attempt to shore up that out of the hospital service agenda that we have found to be
necessary for people to get well and stay well.

Chairman Holmberg: | am sure the subcommittee will address this.

Carlotta McCleary, Executive Director for both Mental Health America of ND and ND
Federation of Families for Children’s Mental Health testified in favor of HB 1040 and
provided written Testimony attached # 1 — sharing that Mental Health Advocacy Network
(MHAN) advocates for a consumer/family driven mental health system of care that provides
an array of service choices that are timely and effective and asking for increased funding for
this bill. She also submitted Testimony attached # 2- The Mental Health Advocacy Network
(MHAN) A coalition for North Dakota expressing the values of MHSN and states it supports
a responsive and immediate solution to the existing gaps in mental health services in ND and
rejects the notion of a phased-in, years-long approach to service development.

Chairman Holmberg: (0.21.08) As | understand it like for family support, that 75,000 in
here and it also has a contingent of $125,000 if the state revenues.... and is that the same
for the Peer, yes that is the same for the Peer to Peer. That was confirmed.

Senator Mathern: What do you think the present need is in our state for the peer-to-peer
and family to family funding. What would be the appropriation to fund the need? What is the
ultimate goal to fund the need?

Ms. McCleary: Ultimately, anyone who is receiving intensive case management, whether it
through the Children’s FED program, or through the FMI program, | think everybody should
have access to another tier of that support. We are serving less than 10% of that adult
population right now. We need to do so much more. The original bill looked at 13 additional
FTE’s across the state. | think it's a start. It really provides that person to person of help for
how to access mental health and giving people hope and how to reach recovery.

Senator Mathern: So the interim committee addressed about a $2m amount to address this
need throughout the state. Would that be accurate? Ms. McCleary replied yes.

Siobhan Deppa, a consumer of Behavioral Health Services in North Dakota testified in
favor of HB 1040 and presented written Testimony attached # 3 — asking for support for this
bill, particularly the Peer-to-Peer Support Program. She also submitted Testimony attached
# 4 from Marcia Hettich, a Mental Health Advocate asking for support for this bill,
particularly the Peer-to-Peer Support Program.

Chairman Holmberg: The original section 6 had $1.92M for Peer-to-Peer or family to family
support.
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Denise Harvey, Director of Program Services with the Protection and Advocacy
Project provided written Testimony attached # 5. On behalf of Teresa Larsen, the Executive
Director asking for support for this bill. She also submitted Testimony attached # 6 from
Bethany Mack, regarding her son who really needs the Peer-to-Peer support programs and
also the Family-to-Family Support Programs in this bill. She also submitted Testimony
attached # 7 — from Jackie Keck, a Mental Health Advocate and presides over the Williston
Basin Resource Coalition, asking for support for programs as the statewide Peer-to-Peer
Support for adult consumers who have a mental health illness.

Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on HB 1040 and stated that the Department of
Human Services Subcommittee will be appointed to this.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A Subcommittee hearing regarding the bill addressing Alcohol & Drug Education Program.
(DHS)

Minutes: No Testimony submitted

Chairman Kilzer called the subcommittee to order on HB 1040 in the Harvest Room at 11:30
am. Let the record show that all committee members are present: Chairman Kilzer, Senator
Erbele, Senator Dever, and Senator Mathern. Michael Johnson, Legislative Council and Lori
Laschkewitsch, OMB were also present.

Chairman Kilzer: Let's make sure we're working off the same bill: .08000. It comes to us
from the House and it has been through the Senate Human Services committee with referral
to Appropriations. Now it is up to us to make a recommendation to the full Senate
Appropriation committee.

Maggie Anderson: | can speak to the Medicaid targeted case management pieces, Pam
Sagness is here to speak to the behavioral health parts.

Chairman Kilzer: Would you tell us about this bill? It was not in the executive budget. Was
it an OAR? When | first look at the bill, there was quite a bit of money in it, now not so much.
| see $23M in Pam’s part. | would like to know the status of this orphan bill.

Maggie Anderson: The largest portion of the funding would be in section 10 of the bill.
That's for the targeted case management for children who are seriously emotionally
disturbed. That is $7M of general funds, and $7M of matching funds. That would be
expanding a current Medicaid state plan service. Currently in Medicaid we do pay for targeted
case management for individuals with serious mental illness and children with emotional
disturbance. However, that is one state plan area where a state can restrict provider
enroliment, we restrict that enroliment to the Human Service Centers and the tribes. The bill
was originally going to open up both SMI and SED targeted case management to all
providers. That was removed in the House. The Senate has restored the money specifically
for children who are not able to access services at a Human Service Center; not convenient
for them to get to the center, but there is a qualified provider in their community, it would open
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up the state plan for that. This is an interim committee bill, we looked at the prevalence of
serious emotional disturbance in North Dakota, the number of clients we are serving at the
Humans Service Centers, the number of clients that would potentially leave that are not
currently accessing services, we estimated how many we thought would seek services from
a private provider, and then applied our rates and normal length of care. This was not in the
executive budget; we did not have optional adjustment requests for them. This came out of
the behavioral health study in the interim. From the behavioral health stakeholders’
workgroup, interim committee, and the needs assessment. When you look at the
Department’s optional adjustment requests, we had some. We were asked to look for
savings. While we weren't held to the 90% budget, we were asked to look for savings.

Chairman Kilzer: How much money is in Pam’s budget for the children who are eligible?

Maggie Anderson: That money is not in Pam’s budget, that money is at the Human Service
Centers. While it is Medicaid funding, at that point, the Human Service Centers are Medicaid
providers. They provide the service, they bill on the MMIS, and then we pay that and draw
down from the federal money, and push that money out to the Human Service Center. That
money is not in Pam’s division, it's in each of the Human Service Centers.

Chairman Kilzer: | would like to know roughly what the amount is. It's the matter of eligibility
and where the service is delivered.

Maggie Anderson: I'll get that number for you. It's a matter of opening up the provider group.
It would be as if we said we were only going to offer dental services in Bismarck, or only allow
certain dentist to enroll; now we're saying we want it to be all dentists. This is a situation in
Medicaid, they allow this for very few services where you can restrict providers. This is one
where historically the state has done that.

Chairman Kilzer: | am not sure | got a list of your OAR’s. Did you pass one out?
Maggie Anderson: We can get a copy for you of that.
Senator Mathern: Refresh my memory, why did we decide to restrict this service?

Maggie Anderson: That was what was in the state plan before | came. When we do that
restriction of the state plan, you have to tell why it's ok to restrict that, we talk about the
Human Service Centers and their role in setting core service. CMS has approved that, we
updated all the targeted case management state plans about 2 years ago. We do have to
justify it.

Senator Mathern: If we open it up and that creates additional expenditures, does that mean
that that group of children is not receiving care?

Maggie Anderson: That is how our estimate is built. We looked at the prevalence data and
the number of children that we've served. We did the difference and estimated a percentage;
we assume 50% would actually receive services. We looked at our historical data, and did
an estimate.
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Senator Mathern: Isn't it also possible that there would be no increase, that people would
just switch from a Human Service Center to a private provider?

Maggie Anderson: If individuals switched from a Human Service Center to a private
provider, that piece of it would have no potential financial increase, but if we truly believe that
the prevalence data is accurate and that those children who currently have a diagnosis of
serious emotional disturbance would need services, you're going to have increased
expenditures, we didn’t assume 100%, we knew it wouldn’t be all of them. To think that we'd
add a service, when what we've heard for the last couple of interims is that people need more
services, they're looking for care coordination, | don't think it would be accurate to assume
we wouldn’t see increase expenditures.

Senator Dever: The bill from interim committee had $12,196,834 of general funds and $12M
of federal funds. It was stripped out in the House Human Services Committee, and restored
in the Senate to $7M and $7M.

Chairman Kilzer: Is itthe case, Maggie, it's only the provider restrictions that are changing?
How about the eligibility of the children and family, has that changed?

Maggie Anderson: That was not in the fiscal estimate. With targeted case management,
you have to define a group. The general population of Medicaid, 69,000 people, we don’t do
targeted case management; we do primary case management with their doctor. This is more
diagnosis specific. They have to be Medicaid eligible, serious emotional disturbance. They
have to be under the age of 21, they have to have a mental disorder defined in the DSM-5,
the child must demonstrate a function impairment of 50 or less on the global assistance
functioning. They need to have service needs involving two or more community agencies;
and then they have to be determined as having psychiatric crisis or emergency which
requires emergency intervention to prevent institutional placement or be in need of long term
mental health services. Those are our service eligibility requirements. We did not
contemplate reducing any of those service eligibilities. If we would reduce those and allow
more children into the service, that would change the fiscal estimate. That $7M is solely to
say we are going to open this up to private providers in addition to the Human Service
Centers.

Pam Sagness, Behavioral Health Division of DHS: | wanted to make a note, in Section
10, there would be one language change. It still says in lines 12-13, individuals with a serious
mental illness; that language was relevant for when funding was available for both adult and
youth. Now it’s just for the youth; there should be a strike through, ‘individuals with a serious
mental illness and’.

Senator Mathern: Didn't we have another bill, with behavioral health services, that
amounted to about $20M, what is that?

Pam Sagness: Originally with the combination of state and federal money that this was
$24M.

Chairman Kilzer: Would it be fair to say, if this passed in its entirety that it would basically
double your total appropriation? | think you have $23M right now in 1012.
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Pam Sagness: To clarify the behavioral health division budget. Our budget is not specific to
these services, and is not providing these services. The $23M you see in the behavioral
health division is primarily federal funding. It funds things like prevention efforts that go to
communities, not services for youth or adults. There isn’'t any overlap between this bill and
our budget, except for the section that is specific to FirstLink or 2-1-1 services and Family to
Family services. Those are the only two areas where there is any connection. This bill is
proposing enhancements to those current services.

Chairman Kilzer: Is there any past history of your division offering these services?

Pam Sagness: These services have historically been provided through the Human Service
Center, and not through the policy or administration division of the Behavioral Health Division.

Senator Mathern: | would see this as a standalone bill that came to us from the interim. |
see it as providing some enhancements to services that are needed in behavioral health, and
| would recommend that we pass it.

Chairman Kilzer: | don’t think we have the information of the history of what the services
have been; and we need to have that information. There will be duplication if we continue the
funding of Human Services Centers at the levels that we anticipate and if we would give
approval. Was that discussed with the House and Senate Human Service Committees?
About these services that were offered through the Human Service Center.

Maggie Anderson: Not to my knowledge, did they ask specifically what the Human Service
Centers had billed. We were looking at the prevalence, how many people. How many dollars
are going forward, looking at the gap of who may not be receiving services.

Chairman Kilzer: That concerns me. That the people who put this back in were not aware
how much was being spent through the Human Service Centers.

Senator Mathern: If the committee was unwilling to get enough support to fund this program.
Are there still parts of this bill that are needed to enhance services? Section 1 or section 2.
Maybe Pam could address that. What are items in this bill that would help our Department
and our service delivery?

Pam Sagness: The first two sections, were a recommendation that came from the
Department to the interim committee. There was originally an appropriation of $10,000 for us
to make the transition. I'll explain the two sections, there is currently no appropriation for 1
and 2, we believe we have the resources with our federal funding to be able to see this
transition happen. Section 1 changes Century Code that identifies a youth that gets a minor
charge, that individual is required to do education, but Century Code doesn'’t identify who
requires that education to occur. There is no minimum standard for what that education is.
Right now anyone can provide that service, they can advertise and provide that service; that
is a service to youth. Our recommendation was in section 1 and 2 we needed an opportunity
to set a minimum standard of an evidence based program that would set that standard, so
we would know that youth were getting that service and that the individuals providing that
service were certified to provide it. This is a private sector service; the DHS will not be
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providing this service. Local public health units have an interest in doing this. They could do
it for free, cost to the client, or charge each individual. There is already a lot of private
providers who do this, this would provide training to do this.

Senator Erbele: | would like to make a comment on the overall bill. | think we are serious
about doing some restoration in 1012. | don’t think this bill can handle all the funding. On this
bill, we are just recommending to the committee; the full committee will decide. So we will
recommend something if we keep section 1 and 2, maybe section 6. 7 and 9 are contingency
sections; we have been steering away from contingencies. | think if we went with this would
inhibit our ability to do what we want to do in 1012. If we would bring it back to full committee
with section 1, 2, and 6.

Chairman Kilzer: Is that a motion?
Senator Erbele: | move that for the sake of discussion.

Chairman Kilzer: We're talking about retaining sections 1, 2, and 6 and removing the rest.
That is the way it would go to the full appropriations committee.

Senator Dever: Second the motion.
Chairman Kilzer: Further discussion.

Senator Dever: | don't disagree with that; | am wondering if we should be considering the
whole bill in the context of 1012, and set it aside for now. Should we consider putting section
6 and 7 together for $200,000 and a direct appropriation rather than $75,000 and possibly
the same for section 8 and 9.

Senator Erbele: | guess | need some clarification from Senator Dever. 7 and 9 are the
contingent sections.

Senator Dever: Section 6 appears to be $75,000, section 7 is contingent on a surplus in the
general fund. If | am reading that right, we just make it $200,000 in direct appropriation.

Senator Mathern: The way | hear this being discussed is that we would put $200,000 into
Peer to Peer support services from general fund; and we would put $200,000 in general fund
for Family to Family support.

Senator Dever: One of the thoughts going through my mind is $75,000 doesn’t do a lot. If
we're not going to properly fund it, should we fund it at all?

Chairman Kilzer: At that stage | would not vote for it without knowing what funding exists
already.

Senator Dever: The conference committee would be made up of Human service policy
members, | think we should set them up for success.
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Chairman Kilzer: The obvious fact that they didn’t have all their information when they made
their decision. We can proceed with the motion and the second that we have to retain
sections 1,2, 6.

Senator Mathern: | would say 1, 2, and 6 are very important.

Senator Dever: Assuming the failure of the motion | would make another motion for 1, 2, 6,
and 8, with 6 and 8 being funded at $200,000 each.

Chairman Kilzer: Call the roll on the motion made by Erbele for retaining 1,2,6 and not
retaining the remaining sections as to what we bring to full appropriation committee.

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 2; Nay: 2; Absent:0. Motion failed.

Senator Dever: Made the motion to retain 1, 2, 6, 8, with 6 and 8 having an appropriation
for $200,000 rather than $75,000. 2" by Senator Mathern.

Chairman Kilzer: | would not support that motion, without knowing the Human Service
Centers are putting in the fund.

Senator Dever: We could delay action until we have more information.
Senator Erbele: | am ok with waiting.

Chairman Kilzer: When we might have the information about the amount of money the
Human Service Centers do on this subject.

Maggie Anderson: Hopefully we’ll have that on Monday.

Chairman Kilzer: We will meet again on Monday.
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Senator Kilzer called the sub-committee to order on HB 1040. Senators Erbele, Dever and
Mathern were also present.

Senator Kilzer: We had a question how much of this budget is coming out of human service
centers.

Maggie Anderson: There was a section added to HB 1040 that would appropriate a little
over $7M of general fund, a little more than $7M of federal money for seriously mentally ill
and seriously emotionally disturbed targeted case management. The amendment opens up
the Medicaid service, so right now that Medicaid service is restricted to the human service
centers and the North Dakota tribal governments or 638 programs.

You asked how much the human service centers were basically incurring or billing that for
Medicaid, so we pulled that for 2 years and for fiscal year 2015, it was $4.2M. That's a
combination of SMI and SED. The majority of that is SMI (seriously mentally ill) which is
more of the adult population than the children’s population. For federal year 2016, the
amount is about $3.4M that the human service centers are billing for those two services.

Senator Kilzer: These are not federal grants, they’re billable charges?
Maggie Anderson: They are Medicaid services, so for each claim that the human service
center submits to MMIS when we pay that claim, 50% of the money will come from the federal

government and 50% would be state funded.

Senator Kilzer: It was $4.2M in the year 2015 — is that the total amount or is that the general
fund?
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Maggie Anderson: That's the total amount that the human service centers billed.
Senator Kilzer: And the federal government paid half of it?

Maggie Anderson: Right. They paid about 50% of it. It's possible that we would have a
child - when CHIP (Children’s Health Insurance Program) was implemented in ND, we did a
couple different phases of CHIP implementation and there was one called Medicaid
Expansion CHIP that predates anything to do with Medicaid expansion and the Affordable
Care Act. It's a group of kids that would otherwise have failed Medicaid if not for the asset
test. We called them Medicaid expansion kids on CHIP and we are able to secure a higher
federal match for them. At a minimum, these dollars would be 50-50.

Senator Mathern suggested taking the sections separately and voting on them so they could
move the bill out of committee. Sections 1 & 2 have support and are needed by the
department. The other sections can stand on their own. Combine sections 5 & 6, and 7 & 8
as Senator Dever suggested in taking out the trigger mechanism but fund the service.

Senator Kilzer: asked which version of the bill he was referring to? (.08000)

Senator Mathern: The .08000 version — this was adopted by the Senate after the Human
Service committee met. (17.0183.08000 — Testimony Attached # 1)

Senator Dever: | think our conversation the other day was in support of sections 1 & 2 and
then combine sections 6 & 7 and then sections 8 & 9. If you eliminate the contingent
appropriation, we'll roll it into the regular appropriation.

Senator Erbele: We were talking — section 1 & 2 and sections 6 & 8 but changing the number
between the two to $200,000 instead of $150,000.

Senator Dever: It would be $200,000 in section 6 and $200,000 in section 8. Section 6 has
$75,000. Section 7 has $125,000 that is contingent and section 8 has $75,000 and Section
9 has $125,000 contingent. So it was $200,000 in each. The House had $200,000 in section
3 and looks like differing priorities.

Senator Erbele: You would go $200,000 and remove the contingent language or not?

Discussed the contingency —

Senator Mathern: Moved to adopt sections 1 & 2.
Senator Dever: Seconded the motion.

A Roll Call Vote was taken: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.

Senator Kilzer: Yes
Senator Dever: Yes
Senator Erbele: Yes
Senator Mathern: Yes
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Senator Kilzer: On serious mental illness, does that cover the same population as we're
talking about in HB 1040. Is it a different population, or more children? How does that mesh
with how the House turned out .080007?

Maggie Anderson: Specifically to Section 10 of HB 1040 (.08000 version) — the numbers
are what the human service centers have billed for that service for the past 2 years. We
wouldn’t expect that to change. It's possible because some of those people may go to a
private provider, but even if they go to a private provider, we're still going to incur those costs.
It's not really looking at what the HSCs have been billing, it's saying who may not be able to
be served by the HSC because perhaps they're not in a location that’s convenient. Maybe
they choose not to receive their services at the HSC, so what section 10 does, it would direct
the department to take that service that is currently in the Medicaid state plan and open it up
beyond the HSCs and the tribes to allow any qualified private provider to provide the service.
It's not an expansion of service, it's more an expansion of which providers are able to deliver
the service. Therefore we would expect to serve additional individuals.

Senator Mathern: Moved adoption of Section 10.

Senator Kilzer: That would have a price tag of an additional $7M. This was not an OAR or
a request and comes out of the senate human services interim committee.

Senator Dever: the original version came from interim committee with $12M
Senator Erbele: Seconded the motion.

Senator Mathern: Senator Dever is correct. Case management was in the interim
committee. Case management was taken out by the House in this session’s standing
committee and this session’s standing committee in the Senate reintroduced this version of
it which is now section 10.

Senator Erbele: Did the House have anything in it or did they pull this section out and we
put it back in?

Michael Johnson: The House removed this section from the bill so there was no money for
case management services. The Senate version added $7M back.

Senator Dever: The House left in sections 1, 2 & 3 and section 3 had $200,000 rather than
$400,000 that was in the original bill.

Michael Johnson: The House included sections 1 & 2 related to the alcohol and drug
education program. They also left in a section for a pilot project — children’s prevention and
early intervention behavioral health services. That included $200,000 from the general fund.

Senator Dever: Which is what section 3 of the current bill has? Except section three now
has $400,000.
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Michael Johnson: The House version had $200,000 and the .08000 version here shows
$400,000 for section 3.

Senator Kilzer: So that was increased by the Senate Human Services committee and the
full senate increased it from $200,000 to $400,0007?

Senator Kilzer: We have a motion before us to adopt section 10 for $7M.

Senator Dever: | would support it, except we're talking priorities here and | think this is a big
chunk of change that we’re not prepared to commit to at this point.

A Roll Call Vote was taken: 1 yeas, 3 nays, 0 absent.
Senator Erbele: No
Senator Dever: No
Senator Mathern: Yes
Senator Kilzer: No

Motion fails.

Senator Mathern: We’ve discussed Section 3 pilot project that the House set at
$200,000 and the Senate Human Services Standing committee set at $400,000.
I move the adoption of section 3 at the $400,000 level.

Maggie Anderson heard the question but stated she would not be able to answer the
questions and that Pam Sagness is not here.

Aimee Copas, Executive Director, North Dakota Council for Educational Leaders:
We've worked with Pam Sagness with regard to section 3. We worked almost an entire
interim trying to put together this potential pilot project. What we're looking at, with that
amount, is to be able to have the Department of Human Services work with the district to
create a community wrap around project where we can essentially start breaking down the
silos between education and the Department of Human Services to try to provide better
services for our kids and parents. In talking to Pam, by the state being able to fund this initial
pilot project, we could potentially open ourselves up to additional federal dollars to help
extend out that pilot that we would not be subject to being able to have without the state first
stepping forward to start the pilot project on our own.

Senator Kilzer: What would be the difference between $200,000 and $400,000 as your
base?

Aimee Copas: It would be the difference between one school and two schools being able to
participate in the pilot. Currently we have an elementary school in Minot to start what we
were looking at. They were able to get a singular Bremer bank grant and we found that the
cost to run that pilot was approximately $200,000.
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Senator Mathern: Dr. Copas has answered my question, so if we don't go for the 4 (section),
| hope we go for the 2. If there is something the House has already approved, let’s try to
approve it.

Senator Dever: Then section 4 has a contingent appropriation to add an additional
$1,556,000 for the same program. l|s that then to extend it across the state?

Aimee Copas: | wish | could answer, but don’t have the answer. | can get it to you by
morning.

Senator Mathern: | see the pattern here and the intent would be to extend it further but use
contingency appropriated money. It's children prevention and early intervention is the title
and that's the same title for section 3 which defines the program. Section 4 is continuing
that program but in more areas with contingency language.

Senator Erbele: The goals of the pilot project — is there a hope that there is going to be
some savings in some other area as we go forward with this or are we creating a whole new
branch of the department? I'm always shy on pilot projects because once you do a pilot,
then you need the airplane, and then you need the runway and it keeps going.

Aimee Copas: One of the things that schools are not good at is operating in the area of
Human Services. There are a lot of things we’re learning as we work with Pam (Sagness)
and that’s the opportunity to work with them and have billable services. That's an area | can’t
speak very well to, but with a partnership with Health and Human Services, we can find ways
to get these pilot projects started, do things through billable services so we're not creating
new levels of bureaucracy but creating a self-funding mechanism. The piece that we don't
know is how do we implement this into the school structure. By no means or any stretch of
the imagination are the people within our schools able to provide the therapy, but we need
to figure out a way to get to our students, the right services that they need, and the parents
the right services they need. There are a lot of things that we are doing within the schools
that we can pull them around to be billable services so the state is not on the hook.

Senator Erbele: Is a biennium long enough to see the success of the program? If we see
that it's not going to work, do we drop it in two years. Do we have time to get anything off
the ground in this amount of time with one school?

Aimee Copas: The first year will have people doing the planning stages and the second
year probably will be the logical application of the pilot. We can still provide a report of
what's going in place with legislative management by the end of the biennium. We can see
the pilot in place and where we're going with it. The legislature could then determine if it's
worthwhile. There are a number of concepts already out there and ready to be proposed,
so we have good ideas of what we want to have done on the basis of rural versus urban, and
different pieces like that, but as far as being fully implemented by the biennium, it's tough to
say.

Senator Kilzer: There's been a motion to adopt section 3 at $400,000. Asked for 2" to the
motion.

The motion dies for lack of a 2.
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Senator Mathern: Moved section 4 — establishing a early intervention and behavioral
health services project between the Dept. of Human Services and school
programming. The section would be contingent on the general fund revenue going
up at least $5M beyond what is the estimated projection.

Senator Erbele: Seconded the motion.
Senator Kilzer: The vote will be on section 4 with $5M and a trigger from OMB.

Senator Dever: the number would be $1,556,000 assuming that there is a $5M surplus over
the projected general fund revenue.

Senator Kilzer: the trigger is first — which is $1.5M.
A Roll Call Vote was taken: 2 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent.

Senator Kilzer: No
Senator Erbele: Yes
Senator Dever: No
Senator Mathern: Yes

Motion fails.

Senator Mathern: Moved a Do Pass of section 5. This is appropriating a grant of 2-1-
1 which implements a statewide program where people can call in and get assistance.
Creates a behavioral health data base of profit and non-profit organizations.

Senator Kilzer: What is their funding already?

Senator Mathern: Their funding comes from a number of sources. There is probably a grant
in the Department of Human Services to 2-1-1 for a couple hundred thousand dollars or more
beyond this $70,000. | think we do provide them a grant for doing 2-1-1.

Maggie Anderson: In 2017-19 to the House, the total was $550,000 and of that $542,800
was general fund.

Senator Kilzer: More than a half a million already are general funds for 2-1-1. Is there
additional money from the Health Dept. that we know about?

Maggie Anderson: All of that was kind of consolidated into DHS a few years ago, that it had
been some in the Adjutant General's budget and ours. | think it's all here. That $550,000 is
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a hold even number from 2015-17 budget until now and in the 2013-15 budget was when
you added an additional $107,800.

Senator Kilzer: Asked for a second to the motion.

The motion dies for lack of second.

Senator Mathern: | would like to combine sections 6 & 7 so that peer to peer support
services would be at $200,000 (from page 2, line 29). Deleting all of section 7 — no
contingency.

Senator Dever: Seconded the motion.

Senator Kilzer: \We have a motion and a second to combine sections 6 & 7 and change to
$75,000 to $200,000 and eliminate the wording of section 7. Does peer to peer appear in
the HB 1012 budget?

Maggie Anderson: I'd want to check, but | believe both peer to peer and family to family
have $75,000 which is a hold even amount? (talking to financial colleagues)

We have peer to peer for children in the 2017-19 budget and family to family - $75,000 for
each of those.

Senator Kilzer: That's in the children and family sections.

Maggie Anderson: The family to family is in CFS. The peer to peer is in the behavioral
health division. Those were added last year as a new funding stream for those two areas
and they are hold even in 2017-19 budget — at $75,000 each. The section you are looking
at is adults and that’s not what the $75,000 is for, that's just for the kids.

Senator Mathern: Peer to peer support services are very important as are family to family
support services. Both of these programs are very cost effective and are based on studies
that save money and work.

Senator Kilzer: This was not an OAR. If we're going to fund it, we should have a source of
funding. Otherwise something else will have to suffer.

Senator Kilzer: Please call the roll on adding section 6 at $200,000 on line 29 on page
2, and combining it with section 7 with no additional money.

A Roll Call Vote was taken: 3 yeas, 1 nays, 0 absent.
Senator Dever: Yes
Senator Kilzer: No
Senator Mathern: Yes
Senator Erbele: Yes
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Senator Dever: | would move section 8 changing $75,000 (on line 18 on page 3) to
$200,000 and delete section 9.
Senator Erbele: Seconded the motion.

Discussion -

A Roll Call Vote was taken: 3 yeas, 1 nays, 0 absent.
Senator Erbele: Yes
Senator Mathern: Yes
Senator Dever: Yes
Senator Kilzer: No

Senator Dever: Moved a Do Pass recommendation to the full committee on HB 1040
as amended by the subcommittee.

Senator Erbele: Seconded the motion.
Senator Kilzer: | am concerned about adding $400,000.

Senator Dever: | agree with Senator Erbele that it's a matter of getting it to conference
committee and resolving those issues there.

A Roll Call Vote was taken: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.
Senator Kilzer: Yes
Senator Dever: Yes
Senator Erbele: Yes
Senator Mathern: Yes

Senator Mathern will explain the bill to the full appropriations committee.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A DO PASS AS AMENDED on the alcohol and drug education program (DHS)

Minutes: 1.Proposed Amendment # 17.0183.06003

Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on HB 1040. All committee members
were present. Michael Johnson, Legislative Council and Becky Deichert, OMB were also
present.

Chairman Holmberg: This is a bill that has kind of inflatable. It's been small, big, small, big
and now it’s big. It came from the House very small and now it's quite big.

Senator Kilzer: Presented Attachment # 1 — Proposed Amendment # 17.0183.06003. You
are right, Mr. Chairman. This is a bill that started off with several million dollars then the
House minimized it and then it came over here and the Human Services Policy Committee
put the money back in. And what we’ve done after several two to two tie votes is to leave in
$400,000. $200,000 to Peer to Peer, and $200,000 to Family to Family. The thing we did
different in our deliberations was that we checked with DHS about how much money these
agencies, the stakeholders were getting from other divisions within the DHS and we learned
that their money is in the Human Service Division of the Department rather than the
behavioral part of it. So we want to keep the bill alive and thus that’'s the amounts that you
see in the amendment.

Senator Kilzer: moved the Amendment # 17.0183.06003. 2" by Senator Dever.

Senator Mathern: | think it is important that everybody know that this bill came from the
interim Human Service Committee as one of the premier proposal regarding Behavioral
Heath for this legislative session. It had some $28m in it. The house reduced that to
$200,000. The Senate committee added a number of trigger mechanisms. The first 2
sections that are in the bill are Section 1 and 2, which essentially clarify that all these people
who want to services for substance use have to get some sort of license for approval from
the Department so that they are evidenced-based programs, they are not just feel good
programs. There is a section that triggers in a pilot project for Children’s Prevention and
Early Intervention behavioral health services. That would be if the general fund revenue




Senate Appropriations Committee
HB 1040

04-04-17

Page 2

projections go over $5m more than projected. The things defeated in here were 211, a couple
of other triggers and then a major Child Case Management Program. Essentially the Human
Service Committee of the Senate, in looking at all of the issues, came to the conclusion we
were doing more for adults than we were doing for children in terms of Behavioral Health.
So that was an addition that they wanted to demonstrate that we're doing something for
children too, but that was defeated in the subcommittee. So what we have left is the areas
that Senator Kilzer noted and the other two areas that | noted. (0.04.45)

Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on the Amendment to 1040.

A Roll Call vote was taken on the Amendment: Yea: 14; Nay: 0; Absent: 0.

Senator Kilzer: Moved a Do Pass as Amended. 2" by Senator Dever.

Chairman Holmberg: | am assuming that you would like us to carry the bill.

Chairman Holmberg: call the roll on a Do Pass as Amended on HB1040.

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 14; Nay: 0; Absent: 0. Senator Kilzer will carry the
bill.

The hearing was closed on HB 1040.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1040

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the Senate as printed on pages 852-854 of the Senate
Journal, Reengrossed House Bill No. 1040 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 5, remove "to provide for a report;"
Page 1, remove lines 20 through 24

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 6 with:

"SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $200,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human services for
the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer support organization, for
the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. Funds awarded must
be used for providing recovery and peer support services to individuals with emotional,
behavioral, or mental health needs.

SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys
in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$200,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human
services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide family-to-family support
organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.
Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support services to
individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

This amendment adds:

« Ageneral fund appropriation of $200,000 to the Department of Human Services for
providing a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer support organization.

» Ageneral fund appropriation of $200,000 to the Department of Human Services for
providing a grant to a statewide family-to-family support organization.

Page No. 1 17.0183.06003
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1040, as reengrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg,
Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended,
recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Reengrossed HB 1040, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the Senate as printed on pages 852-854 of the
Senate Journal, Reengrossed House Bill No. 1040 is amended as follows:

Page 1, line 5, remove "to provide for a report;"
Page 1, remove lines 20 through 24
Page 2, replace lines 1 through 6 with:

"SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$200,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human
services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer support
organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.
Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support services to
individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs.

SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum
of $200,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of
human services for the purpose of providing a grant to a statewide family-to-family
support organization, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30,
2019. Funds awarded must be used for providing recovery and peer support
services to individuals with emotional, behavioral, or mental health needs."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:
This amendment adds:

« Ageneral fund appropriation of $200,000 to the Department of Human Services for
providing a grant to a statewide peer-to-peer support organization.

« Ageneral fund appropriation of $200,000 to the Department of Human Services for
providing a grant to a statewide family-to-family support organization.

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_61_007
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; relating to a penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; and to provide an appropriation to the department of human services.

Minutes:

Chairman Weisz: Called the conference committee to order.
Attendance was taken>
Opened the discussion on HB 1040

Chairman Weisz: We will ask the senate to explain what they did to our bill.

Sen. J. Lee: We thought it was a good idea to put all of this in here so that the legislature
could understand what we are going to need. There is the DUI program for minors and that
is what we are looking at in the first part. There were other things that were in there that we
realized they were never going to be possible to put all of the funding in. As we moved these
bills out of our interim committees, we thought it was important for the legislative body to
know what it was going to take to do all the things that were worked on. There was a lot of
work going into it in order to develop plans for providing the kinds of services that we need
and the professionals who could provide them. That is a little background.

Peer to peer support services are a critical issue in assisting people who may be coming out
of recovery or out of incarceration. This will be less expensive than having the high level
professional. Then the family to family support services. We also had felt quite strongly
about the targeted case management for children, but our appropriations committee felt that
the $7,000,000 was impossible. Anyway, the bill we have before us has $200,000 for Family
to Family and $200,000 for Peer to Peer. Another provision that the committee had sent to
appropriations was the $70,000 in it to permit the private providers could be put in the data
base so people would have access to those providers.

Sen. Dever: Difference between the house version and the senate version is that rather than
having $200,000 for the early childhood intervention, the bill now has $200,000 for Peer to
Peer and $200,000 for Family to Family.
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Chairman Weisz: | would agree. | think we felt that the early intervention had a higher priority
than the peer to peer for our limited dollars. We can see where everything else plays out in
the whole behavioral health. | don’t know that we need to be in a big rush to settle this. You
do have the $7,000,000 in here.

Sen. Dever: No, we took that out. You don’t have the right version. You need the 9000
version.

Chairman Weisz: OK, | see that the scope has been narrowed a little bit.
Sen. Dever: Mr. Chairman, we can broaden the scope and include all three of them.

Chairman Weisz: | really did take a fair look at it and originally what we sent out from the
house there was $200,000 for the pilot program and 1.9 million for the peer to peer. That did
come out of our committee and then appropriations did amend that down to strictly the
$200,000 due to the budget constraints we are dealing with right now. If | may ask the senate,
what was the rationale for completely illuminating the early intervention?

Sen. Dever. When it came to senate appropriations, regarding the issues of peer to peer
and family to family there were 4 sections involved. One section in each provided $75,000
of funding and the other section provided $125,000 in a contingent appropriation. It was
contingent on general fund revenues on July 15t of the first year of 5 million dollars. So senate
appropriations considered those to be very important and opted to combine each of those
sections so it was a $200,000 straight appropriation. That did not leave senate appropriations
money available for early childhood intervention. That was just a matter of what we saw as
a priority. | know this bill started at $28,000,000 out of the interim committee that | and others
here served on. We would like to do more. These are a couple of very important things that
will be doing a lot of things to help a lot of people for a lot of years to come. The early
childhood is an important program, but it only applies to one school district as a pilot project
| am not sure we are providing the benefit across the state that the other ones do.

Chairman Weisz: We were looking at a pilot and our committee knew that we had to be able
to show appropriations that we actually would have some data to show for what we did. We
felt if we could do a pilot program and show the results then we can come back in two years
and say here is what it is doing for us. They will say show me what this is doing for us. That
can be very difficult, because sometimes it is not a fact of life.

Representative P. Anderson: That was part of our discussion. Where is the data that says
that the early childhood intervention works? We know peer to peer works and we know family
to family works, but where is the data for early childhood intervention? We wanted to have
that data.

Sen. Dever: Can assume then that the appropriations agreed with that? That we can do an
expansion in the future if it works?

Chairman Weisz: It is hard to say for sure. Certainly if you are trying to make a case for
expansion of a program it helps to have data to back it up. We just thought we needed to
have the data to at least show them what we did and what the results would be if they rolled
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it out across the state. We know it is important. Obviously if you can get them before they
have all of the issues, it is good.

Sen. J. Lee: | don't think we can decide which one is the most important, the services or the
data. We have nothing else that is working its way through the legislature that applies to the
children, so | have a strong support so | have a strong support for the early childhood
intervention which isn’t even in here anymore. We also desperately need this peer to peer
and the family to family support. If we invest $200,000 in each of these, which is just a drop
in the bucket, | firmly believe it is going to save us money in counseling and other services.
Not only for kids, but for families. That is intervening early also. In both of them we are
talking about emotional, behavioral or mental health needs. If we can help people get back
to their families and working and being part of the community, we will be saving money and
saving people to a large extent. | can’t divide my allegiance to any one of the 3. | am to the
point where | feel that | will have to put people in pot holes in order to get money from
someplace. The kinds of cuts are hard. When we are looking at a number like we are in here
and that is it? | am not proud to go home and say we know you have critical issues, but we
can’'t do anything about it. | get the money part. Please don’'t misunderstand me, but in the
course of balancing some of these things these are critical issues and | think we need to
figure out what we are able to do to at least start going in the right direction.

Sen. Heckaman: Is there a chance for us to look at the pilot program and drop it a bit, but
still keep it in here? |s there a way to do it for less than $200,0007?

Chairman Weisz: | guess if anything, | know there is some money in peer to peer. | know it
is a small amount, but there is some money in the budget for it. No, | guess it is in family to
family support services. | would be more in favor of cutting that down some based on what
that amount is. We could look at that and see what we could do.

Sen. Lee: Can we ask what is in the budget? | don't recall.

Pam Sagness, Dept. of Human Services

Currently there is a $75,000 grant in family to family. There was confusion earlier so | would
like to clarify. There is $75,000 also for parent to parent. That is different than peer support,
so we really have 3 different things we are talking about. The only place there is overlap is
in the family to family. There is a $75,000 grant for family to family.

Chairman Weisz: How much is in the parent to parent?

P. Sagness: There is $75,000 in that program as well for that program. That too is a grant.
Chairman Weisz: How did that differ then?

P. Sagness: Parent to parent is about parents supporting one another versus peer support
which is one peer or consumer to another peer. However, the family to family does appear
to be written the same as what our $75,000 line item would be in the behavioral health

division budget. Also to answer your question about additional funding. There is funding
from the mental health block grant that was allocated or at least proposed in our application
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to be providing support for peer support. | don’t have those numbers so | will have to get that
information.

Chairman Weisz: Can you email that to us? Then we would have that for our next meeting.
Is there any more discussion?

Sen. Dever: Maybe we should look at adding $50,000 and splitting it 3 ways. That would
make it $450,000 to split 3 ways.

Chairman Weisz: Ok we will adjourn for now and meet again on Monday. We should have
data coming back to us from DOCR, (Dept. of Corrections and Rehab), in two years so that
we will know what it is doing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; relating to a penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; and to provide an appropriation to the department of human services.

Minutes:

Chairman Weisz: Called the conference committee to order.

Attendance taken.

We really are not that far apart, but the house had early intervention in here and that was
very important to us. The senate put in peer to peer and family to family. Early intervention
is important to us and maybe family to family isn’t quite so much. We understand the peer
to peer.

Representative B. Anderson: | would make a motion that we approve $150,000 for early
intervention and $150,000 to peer to peer.

Representative P. Anderson: | will second it.
Chairman Weisz: Ok do we have any discussion?

Sen. Dever: At the last meeting | suggested that we add $50,000 and divide it by 3. Did you
give that any consideration?

Chairman Weisz: | certainly did take a look at it. | will say from my perspective and | don't
know where we can actually end up on the dollars, but | would rather see whatever dollars
we have available go to peer to peer and early intervention. | know there are other resources
available for family to family. | don’t think we are really looking at $450,000 for a total. That
will be part of the issue.

Sen. Lee: | received the information from P. Sagness on what the other dollars were in those
other bills, but | can'’t pick it up on my computer. Did | share them with all of you?
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Representative P. Anderson: The appropriations allocated $75,000 for family to family.
Then there is a mental health block grant with $300,000 for peer to peer for the next biennium.
| wasn’t sure | understood because it says this funding is not specific to services as it includes
the cost of training.

Chairman Weisz: | guess what it is saying is that the department can use it at their discretion.
| am not sure how much of it goes for administration or whatever.

Sen. Heckaman: Itis my understanding that it is all for the administrative costs and training.
It is not for services. | look at this bill like it came out of the interim and right now | feel it is
short, about 27.55 million dollars short. | was not on that committee, but | think the work that
they did was important in identifying the needs across ND. When we look at that and the fact
that we could leverage in the range of 12 million dollars with the federal funds and we are
leaving it all on the table without even touching it | feel we are leaving our families short
across the state of ND and the services for children short across the state of ND. Having
said that, | won'’t support the $150,000 and $150,000 unless there is some in all three parts.

Chairman Weisz: | don’t disagree with the importance of behavioral health, but | also know
the problem of trying to maintain the current services that we have now with the limited budget
verses expanding. That is what we are faced with here.

Sen. Lee: | think we all agree that all of these things are important. We may even end up
with Representative B. Anderson’s motion, but | think we need more information on the
dollars in the peer to peer and family to family to be able to make a decision. | would like
more information about the 12 million as well and where all of that money goes.

Chairman Weisz: | certainly don’t have a problem with that. | don’t know if we can meet
later today, but | doubt it.

Sen. Lee: | would like to find one of the people from the health department and get more
information on all of this. When their meeting is over maybe we can get a bit more information
out of their heads. They have it, we just need it in writing so we know what we are doing.

Chairman Weisz: | think we can meet again. | will try to schedule it later today or early
tomorrow.

Representative B. Anderson: Motion withdrawn.
Representative P. Anderson: Second withdrawn.

Chairman Weisz: meeting adjourned.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; relating to a penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; and to provide an appropriation to the department of human services.

Minutes:

Chairman Weisz: Called the conference committee to order.
Attendance taken.

Chairman Weisz: | have a proposal that | would like us to entertain. We all saw the email
with the information about what was already in the budget currently, $75,000 and $75,000
and also that they were looking at possibly getting a block grant which we don’t have the
answer on yet. | would propose that we put $100,000 each in peer to peer and family to
family and $150,000 in early intervention and | would also like some sort flexibility with the
department if they do get the block grant and they would be able to put some of that money
toward services that they would put some more into early intervention to make sure that
project would go forward. To me it is important and | really don’t care what the wording is,
but we know that with that amount of money we can't institute a statewide program, so in
reality peer to peer and family to family would really be a pilot too. We want the money to go
to where ever it will do the most to show us where we will get the best return on our
investment when we come back in two years. We want it to go where it has the best chance
of success so we can come back and say this is what we did with the $125,000 and this was
what resulted and should we expand that and go forward statewide or even expand it within
a region or whatever. That is my proposal.

Sen. Lee: Would you give me the totals again, please?

Chairman Weisz: Early intervention that you took out completely we would put $150,000 in.
Peer to peer and family to family we would put in $100,000 each.

Sen. Lee: So they would each be $300,0007?
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Chairman Weisz: They have $75,000 in it already, so we would be adding to that. There
would be $100,000 in this bill for each one of those and then they still have the $75,000 that
is currently in the budget. The total new dollars would be $350,000. It would be $175,000 in
each of those and $150,000 in early intervention. Early intervention is important. If the block
grant comes through and it allows them money for services, | would like them to have the
flexibility to put $25,000 more into early intervention. So if they could take some of the money
we put in for peer to peer and replace it with the block grant and then take some of that and
shift it over to early childhood intervention.

Sen. Lee: | think that is very much worth discussing. | also have a proposal that | would like
us to consider. We would be looking at the $150,000 in each of the 3, but | like your numbers
better. The one thing that | want be sure we are doing is dealing with the statewide language.
Obviously with that kind of money it can’'t be statewide. Somewhere in here that language
has been taken out. | just want to be sure that the provision is not requiring one statewide
entity, but that programs can be developed where ever in the state they might be important.
Sen. Dever found it in section 4 and in section 5.

Chairman Weisz: To me that should be left up to the department to be able to figure out
where they could get the most bang for their buck. | agree if you try to do something statewide
the success would be 0.

Sen. Lee: Would it be possible to ask M. Anderson a question. The reason we left out early
intervention was because we were told it was going to take $400,000 - $500,000 to do it the
way we were looking at. Is it possible to do a pilot for $150,000 with a school to begin the
program?

Chairman Weisz: It is a pilot. That is the way it came out of the house. The department
came to us and said that if some of the schools have some resources they could partner with
them to have enough money to do it properly. We asked if they could do it with $150,000
and they thought probably, but that is the reason why if they get the block grant they could
have some latitude to add to it and make sure that we can do that pilot project properly.

Sen. Lee: |did hear that the block grant would be more for training and certification and not
for direct services. We have a little risk there, but | don’t know.

Chairman Weisz: | agree, but we are hoping that it could be used that way. We don’t know
if the block grant will allow that or if we will even get it. It will have to be an urban school
initially in order to do the pilot right and incorporate their money too. | am not counting on it
in my proposal, but if it would happen, | would like them to be able to shift $25,000. People
will say that rural is not getting what they need, but we will have to do urban until we figure
out what works.

Sen. Lee: There were a couple of other things that | had notes that we had put together
about what needed to be done. It all ended up under behavioral and not emotional behavioral
or mental health at the end of section 3. The reason | mention this is that if we could just
change the $150,000 to $175,000 in section 4 and 5 | think we probably have it on the version
we have. It includes the other language that was kind of important to fix up some of that.
What it would do is, behavioral health includes all that other stuff, so we don’t need those
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other words. That was something that was suggested that was an appropriate change. | just
want to point out that those differences were discussed with people that are involved in the
services and they did not feel that it would interfere with the goal of services or the amount
of money that we might appropriate.

Chairman Weisz: You are looking at the language in section 4 lines 9 and 10.
Sen. Lee: Yes, because it then becomes section 5 on the little draft.
Sen. Lee: | know it is not a radical change, but it is a change and | want you to be aware.

Chairman Weisz: | don’t think that is an issue, but | know we all wanted more money, but we
are trying to fund the services we have and yet do new things as well. Next biennium that
will really be a concern unless our economy turns around like we hope it does.

Sen. Heckaman: | just want to be sure we have this on the record as to what we are leaving
out on this bill 1040. The important part in here that | think we are leaving is the $7,000,000
for children. When we received the information from the department of human services,
there are about 1600 kids that would benefit from that $7,000,000 and we could generate
$7,000,000 more from the federal. Looking at services in our state, we have to start looking
at building the services here, because right now we have over 40 kids that are placed outside
of the state because we don’t have services here or the ones we do have available are full.
It is about $350/day to over $850/day out of state regardless of where they go. So if you take
those 40 some children and | will just use 40 at $350/day that is about $120,000/year. The
$850/day is in the range of $300,000/year. If you take that and average it at say
$200,000/year to place a child out of state, that is $8,000,000 right there. That is only 40
children out of 1600 that were needing services. | think we need to start building those
services in our state so that we can meet those needs here in ND. | don’t think we can keep
pushing it on to the next legislative session by saying we don’t have the funds. Somewhere
along the way we have to find these funds, because we have to look at the other 3000 or so
children in the state that have serious emotional needs and mental health service needs. We
are not keeping up with the demand right now. Students that have been in Utah and when
they come back there is not the support they need and the distance that the families are. We
are looking at 40 kids that cost us $8,000,000 per year and we are giving up $7,000,000 and
$7,000,000 in federal funds to provide $16,000,000 out of our own state funds. To me that
is not good economics, so | think somewhere along the way we have to build what we need
here in the state.

Chairman Weisz: | don't disagree, but | think this is a start to go forward when we have limited
resources to see how we can do that. | agree going forward we have to do that, but there is
no guarantee that for those 40 the services would eliminate those needs. We need to know
if this will help to lower those costs which you just mentioned, so | believe we have taken that
first step. It is not as big a step as many would like, but it is a start.

Sen. Dever: If the suggestion is to prevent sending children out of state and save dollars by
providing to services in state, then maybe we need to explore that. | don’t know if that would
be a study or can we even do that in the remaining days of this session to put together those
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kinds of services. | am not sure if she was suggesting that the money that was in case
management could be used to help keep those kids in state.

Sen. Heckaman: This was an interim study and this number is what came forward from that
study. | don’t think we will necessarily be able to keep all of those kids in the state, but we
need to have those services in ND available so that we don’t have to send them away or
have families separated. They need to have a connection when they come back to school
and back to a family to have those transition services in there, like family to family and peer
to peer and parent to parent. Those are the important parts that we have, but we don’t have
the first part. We don'’t have the connection about why we are going out of state and why
don’t we have that here. That is the part we have to build.

Chairman Weisz: One of the reasons that the house looked at the early intervention was to
be able to prevent them having to go out of state to start with. Part of it is if you get them
early enough and identify and can address it you could keep them from needing expanded
services. Itis a whole continuum and | understand that.

Sen. Heckaman: That is why we put the contingencies in here to see that some of this could
be increased if the state has the money.

Sen. Lee: The work of the last 4 years in behavioral health has resulted in plans being
developed that really are concrete. It is all put together and we developed really good plans.
We have only been held back for lack of funds. The children that are being served out of
state is because they are unique challenges. We do know how to do this, but we don'’t have
that money to do this. That is why there was $28,000,000 in here to begin with, because that
is what we need to do it right. We knew we wouldn't have it now, but we wanted to make
sure they knew what was needed. Do we support our nursing homes or do we help the kids?
It is a very difficult decision and | wish we had money to do both, but we don'’t right now.

If I might suggest that we look at using the figures that you brought forward, Chairman Weisz,
but if we can wrap that into the language so that we cover that one or more organizations
and so forth, that | would be supportive of that. | can’t speak for my colleagues.

Chairman Weisz: | will have it drafted and then we would meet this afternoon to do it.

Sen. Dever: | would like to go look at those two binders that | have on the human service
budget and see where that money is at and if it is used for the same programs or is able to
be used for that then | am ok. If it is necessary to reference those funds in this bill, then |
think we need to do that.

Chairman Weisz: If there is some language that needs to be changed, let me know before
this afternoon. | would like to schedule a meeting again this afternoon.
Our meeting is adjourned.
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Explanation or reason for introduc‘én of billiresolution:

Relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; relating to a penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; and to provide an appropriation to the department of human services.

Minutes: 1,2

Chairman Weisz: Called the conference committee to order.

Attendance taken.

Chairman Weisz: We have in front of us 2 amendments. (Attachment 1, 2)

The first one that Sen. Lee handed out does talk about the numbers we talked about earlier
where it brings back early intervention to $150,000, puts $100,000 in both peer to peer and
family to family and it does basically remove the language that says it's state wide. | believe
that pretty well explains that. The other amendment that needs to be drafted onto this one
basically says that if the grant comes through and they have more money for the peer to
peer, then some of the appropriations for peer to peer could be transferred to the early
childhood intervention to be sure they have enough for the project. This would mean we are
looking at $350,000 of general fund appropriations then.

Sen. Dever. We are looking at transferring money from peer support to early childhood
intervention.

Chairman Weisz: Yes, that is correct. Say that they got $100,000 additional from the block
grant that could be used for services, they could take some of that money and put it toward
the early childhood intervention. It would give them some flexibility. | would like to see early
intervention at $200,000, but | know we don’t have the money to do that right now.

Sen. Dever: Could we put a cap on that of $50,000?

Chairman Weisz: | don’'t have a problem with that. They may not even get the block grant,
so it might not even be an issue. We can make that change with LC if needed.
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Sen. Lee: | don’'t have a problem with that, but | would think that the department would make
wise use of that money. | don’t have any concerns with what the department will do with the
money.

Chairman Weisz: Whatever the committee wants is fine with me.

Representative P. Anderson: | know we talked about this, but in section 4 its covering peer
to peer support services to individual behavior health needs and then in family to family we
added disability.

Sen. Lee: That addition of disabilities was added at the recommendation of individuals in
the department of human services perhaps to give it more latitude as far as what needs to
be done, but behavioral health would be the umbrella. In the old language it also said
emotional and mental and so forth. Behavioral covers it all, of course, so | was fine with that.
That was an addition that we talked about yesterday.

Representative P. Anderson: Peer to peer is not disability. That is fine with me.

Maggie Anderson, Department of Human Services

The experience the department has had with the current family to family program is that they
serve families with children with disabilities as well as behavioral health needs. It seems to
be a specific focus where they help those families navigate through the system and provide
support to those families. That was the nature of the recommendation.

Chairman Weisz: Are we comfortable then with the amendment? If we meet tomorrow
morning with the amendment.

Sen. Dever: What is the number of the amendment we are talking about?

Chairman Weisz: It is 06008 which would then add the additional language of their ability to
transfer funds with the maximum of $50,000.

Sen. Dever: So we are going to put $150,000 into early childhood, $100,000 into peer to
peer and $100,000 into family to family and we will reduce the $100,000 if there is additional
money and move that over to early childhood.

Chairman Weisz: In reality that is true, because it would be the general fund dollars that
would get moved if indeed they get the block grant that would allow them to some additional
money into services. They would have the flexibility to do that with some of the money. If
they don’t get the grant, it won'’t do anything.

Sen. Dever: Then | would like it to be said that each of these three programs are just a start
in the right direction. When we come back next session we should be better educated on
where best to put those dollars.

Chairman Weisz: Yes, that is true. We just want to be sure that we data to back up what
we think will help in those problems. If we can show the difference that it makes we can then
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know what to do next with the money next session. We need to know that it will give us
results.

Sen. Lee: We just want to be started in the right direction as we go into this. Everyone has
really worked on this to make it work.

Chairman Weisz: Is there anything else.

Sen. Dever: |s there a benefit to providing a report to legislative management or how are
we going to monitor this?

Chairman Weisz: There certainly should be enough attention on it. There will be bills on it
next session, so there will be lots of people keeping on top of this. | don'’t think we need a
report. We could require a report, but | don't think it is necessary.

Sen. Lee: | think the department wants to make this work too. Of course, we will be watching
it but we will know what happens.

Sen. Dever: | once asked someone to be an umpire for our church softball team and he said
he didn’'t know all of the rules. | told him that was ok, because we would tell him if he got it
wrong. Senator Delzer is retiring next year, so | will be chairing the human service budget
next session, so | guess we will know.

Chairman Weisz: | think this is going to be a win-win if it does what we think it will do.

Chairman Weisz: adjourned.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to an evidence-based alcohol and drug education program; relating to a penalty for
individuals under twenty-one years of age using alcoholic beverages or entering licensed
premises; to provide for a report; and to provide appropriations to the department of human
services.

Minutes: 1

Chairman Weisz: Called the conference committee to order.
Attendance was taken.

Chairman Weisz: Everybody should have a copy of the amendments. (Attachment 1)

Sen. Lee: | wonder if Magggie Anderson has seen the amendments. We will let you take a
look at it and then | will be ready to make a motion.

Sen. Lee: | move that the senate recede from the senate amendments and amend as follows
in amendment 06009.

Representative P. Anderson: Second it.

Chairman Weisz: Is there further discussion from the committee?

Sen. Heckaman: | am speaking for everyone | think with my level of disappointment. | think
it has become the model of some of our committees and our stakeholders that better than
nothing seems to be the conclusion. This is a very important piece of legislation for the future
of ND’s behavioral mental health needs. While there still is $350,000 in there, it is over
27,000,000 away from what we need. | will support the amendment and support the bill, but
| am very disappointed that we are not coming up to the needs that we have out there.
Chairman Weisz: Is there any more discussion? Seeing none, the clerk will call the roll.

Roll call vote taken Yes 6 No O Absent 0



House Human Services Committee
HB 1040

4/20/17

Page 2

Meeting adjourned.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1040

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1491 and 1492 of the House
Journal and pages 1175 and 1176 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill
No. 1040 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 24, replace "$200,000" with "$150,000"
Page 2, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES - ALTERNATIVE USE. There is appropriated
out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated,
the sum of $100,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department
of human services for the purpose of providing funds to one or more organizations to
provide peer-to-peer support services, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. Funds provided under this section must be used for providing
recovery and peer support services to individuals with behavioral health needs. If the
department of human services has other funds available to provide for peer-to-peer
support services for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019,
the department may allocate funds appropriated under this section for providing
children's prevention and early intervention behavioral health services as provided for
under section 3 of this Act.

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any moneys
in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$100,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of human
services for the purpose of providing funds to one or more organizations to provide
family-to-family support services, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending
June 30, 2019. Funds provided under this section must be used for providing support
services to families with children who have disabilities or behavioral health needs."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 17.0183.06009
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House Carrier: Weisz
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
HB 1040, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. J. Lee, Dever, Heckaman
and Reps. Weisz, B. Anderson, P. Anderson) recommends that the SENATE
RECEDE from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1491-1492, adopt
amendments as follows, and place HB 1040 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1491 and 1492 of the
House Journal and pages 1175 and 1176 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed
House Bill No. 1040 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 24, replace "$200,000" with "$150,000"
Page 2, after line 6, insert:

"SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
PEER-TO-PEER SUPPORT SERVICES - ALTERNATIVE USE. There is
appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not
otherwise appropriated, the sum of $100,000, or so much of the sum as may be
necessary, to the department of human services for the purpose of providing funds to
one or more organizations to provide peer-to-peer support services, for the biennium
beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. Funds provided under this
section must be used for providing recovery and peer support services to individuals
with behavioral health needs. If the department of human services has other funds
available to provide for peer-to-peer support services for the biennium beginning July
1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019, the department may allocate funds appropriated
under this section for providing children's prevention and early intervention
behavioral health services as provided for under section 3 of this Act.

SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES -
FAMILY-TO-FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES. There is appropriated out of any
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum
of $100,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of
human services for the purpose of providing funds to one or more organizations to
provide family-to-family support services, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017,
and ending June 30, 2019. Funds provided under this section must be used for
providing support services to families with children who have disabilities or
behavioral health needs."

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed HB 1040 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.
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Representative Kathy Hogan

Chairman Weisz and members of the Senate Human Service Committee, my name is
Representative Kathy Hogan, and | chaired the interim human service committee. This morning
you will hear the first of six bills related to behavioral health. Attached is a summary of all of
the interim behavioral health bills. The bills that have fiscal impact are being heard in the
House and other policy related bills are being heard in the Senate.

As most of you know North Dakota is facing a major behavioral health crisis. Over 140,000
adults in North Dakota had either a diagnosable substance use disorder or mental illness in
2013-2014. Four percent (over 22,000) of adults have a serious mental illness but fewer than
10% received a service through the public human service system in 2015.

This lack of service availability and accessibility results in major challenges for corrections, the
homeless providers, child welfare systems, families, first responders, hospitals and law
enforcement. Other systems are very expensive responses because of the lack of services.

One in four teenagers reported in the ND Youth risk Behavior Scale that they are so sad and
hopeless for at least two weeks that they stopped doing their usual activities. 16% of youth
have seriously considered suicide.

Opioid use and addiction is epidemic. Almost half of all fatal car crashes are substance abuse
related. 72% of new incarceration in the prison need substance abuse treatment. | have been
to 7 funerals in the last 18 months for people who have lost their lives to suicide.

The solutions to this crisis needs to be addressed by every aspect of our society — health care
providers, educators, clergy, families, local political leaders and state level policy makers.

We have recommended that all local and state wide groups adopt a model continuum of care
so that we are speaking the same language. This continuum ranges from prevention through

treatment to recovery support.



We heard testimony on the state’s legal requirements for the provision of appropriate service.
We all need to understand the risks of inadequate services including the possibility of either a
federal Olmstead claim or a class action suit.

HB 1040 is the one bill will major funding for expanded services. These were very difficult and
complex recommendations because we had so many suggestions and requests. This bill
attempts to address serious unmet needs along the full continue of care for adults and children
with both mental health and addiction issues. Where to prioritize funding is very difficult.
Because the Department of Human Services budget is in the House, this bill will be your major
focus for the first half of the session.

Let me walk through the bill by various sections.

Sections 1,2 and 3

Established and appropriate one-time funding of $10,000 to establish a Minor in Possession
system that will become self-sufficient. This is an early intervention strategy that parellels DUI
programs for adults and would use an evidence based practice model and offer early
intervention opportunities.

Section 4

Appropriates $1,956,000 from the general fund to DHS for children's prevention and early
intervention behavioral health services. Currently, there are very few early childhood
intervention in ND this results in many situations where children needs gradually escalate and
require additional resources.

Section 5

Appropriate $70,000 from the general fund to DHS for a behavioral health database. Currently
DHS has an extensive resource on licensed addiction services but mental health resources are
not systemically available for prevention, early intervention and mental health services. This
appropriation would strengthen the 211 resource network by broadening its scope of
information.




Section 6

Appropriate $1,920,000 from the general fund to DHS for peer-to-peer and family-to-family
support services. Peer to Peer and family to family support services are those services that
offer recovery and family support particularly to those individuals with serious and persistent
behavioral health issues. If a person (adult or child) receives treatment they often relapse
because of transitions and additional needs. Over the last 20 years, recovery supports have
become evidence based and have proven both cost effective and successful ways to reduce
recidivism.

Section 7

Appropriate $24,393,668, of which $12,196,834 is from the general fund to expand a full range
of behavioral health treatment services. It authorizes 1 full-time equivalent position for DHS for
targeted case management services for adults with severe mental illness and children with
severe emotional disturbance.

Thank you for your time and | am certain you will hear from many people on this bill. 1am
more than willing to answer any questions.
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The Behavioral Health Continuum of Care Model recognizes multiple opportunities for addressing behavioral health
problems and disorders. Based on the Mental Health Intervention Spectrum, first introduced in a 1994 Institute of
Medicine report, the model includes the following components:
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Promotion — These strategies are designed to create
environments and conditions that support behavioral
health and the ability of individuals to withstand
challenges. Promotion strategies also reinforce the entire
continuum of behavioral health services.

Treatment — These services are provided for individuals
diagnosed with a substance use or other behavioral
health disorder.

Recovery — These services support individuals' abilities

Prevention — Delivered prior to the onset of a disorder,

these interventions are intended to prevent or reduce the
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risk of developing a behavioral health problem.
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What Is a
Mental Health Court?

Despite the recent expansion of mental health courts, there are not yet
nationally accepted, specific criteria for what constitutes such a court.
Although some initial research identified commonalities among early mental
health courts, the degree of diversity among programs has made agreement
on a core definition difficult.® Mental health courts vary widely in several
aspects including target population, charge accepted (for example, misde-
meanor versus felony), plea arrangement, intensity of supervision, program
duration, and type of treatment available. Without a common definition,
national surveys developed on mental health courts have relied primarily

on self-reported information to identify existing programs.’

The working definition that follows distills the common characteristics
shared by most mental health courts. The Justice Center worked with leaders
in the field to also develop consensus on what these characteristics should
look like and how they can be achieved, as documented in The Essential Ele-
ments of a Mental Health Court.”

A Working Definition of a Mental Health Court

A mental health court is a specialized court docket for certain defen-
dants with mental illnesses that substitutes a problem-solving model
for traditional criminal court processing. Participants are identified
through mental health screening and assessments and voluntarily par-
ticipate in a judicially supervised treatment plan developed jointly by a
team of court staff and mental health professionals. Incentives reward
adherence to the treatment plan or other court conditions, nonadher-
ence may be sanctioned, and success or graduation is defined accord-
ing to predetermined criteria.'®

*As the commonalities among mental health courts continue to emerge, practitioners, policymakers,
researchers, and others have become interested in developing consensus not only on what a mental health
court is but on what a mental health court should be. The Essential Elements of a Mental Health Court
describes 10 key characteristics that experts and practitioners agree mental health courts should incorpo-
rate. Michael Thompson, Fred Osher, and Denise Tomasini-Joshi, Improving Responses to People with Men-
tal Illnesses: The Essential Elements of a Mental Health Court (New York, NY: Council of State Governments
Justice Center, 2008), www.consensusproject.org/mhcp/essential.elements.pdf.
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~ NORTH DAKOTA MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE PLANNING COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

[ ] [ |
FirstName L MembershipType Organization Address1 Address2 City State ZipCode PhoneFax Email Term Expires
Debbie Baier Principle State Agency: DHS — Medical Services | 600 E Blvd Ave Dept 325 Bismarck ND 58505 W:328-4864 |dbaier@nd.gov
Medicaid Division — Medicaid Fax: 328-1544 Open
Jennifer Henderson Principle State Agency: North Dakota Housing PO Box 1535 Bismarck ND 58502-1535 701-328-8055 |jhenaderson@nd.gov
Housing Finance Agency Fax: 701-328- Open
8085
Cheryl Anderson Principle State Agency: DHS - Division of 1237 W Divide Ave Ste 1B Bismarck ND 58501-1206 328- chess@nd.gov
Vocational Rehabilitation Vocational 8955fax701- Open
Rehabilitation 328-8959
Brad Hawk Other - Minorities ND Indian Affairs 600 E. Boulevard Avenue - Bismarck ND 58505-0300 701-328-2428 |bhawk@nd.gov
Commission Judicial Wing - Rm #117 Fax: 701-328- Open
1537
Kim Osadchuk Principle State Agency: Social |Burleigh County Social |415 East Rosser Avenue Suite 113 Bismarck ND 58501 701-222-6670 |kosadchuk@nd.gov Open
Services Services
Pamela Sagness Principle State Agency: Mental |DHS — Division of 1237 W Divide Ave Ste 1C Bismarck ND 58501-1208 W: 328-8824; |psagness@nd.gov
Health Mental Health & Fax: 328-8969 Open
Substance Abuse
Lisa Peterson Principle State Agency: ND Department of PO Box 1898 Bismarck ND 58502-5521 W: 328-6790; F |lapeterson@nd.gov
Criminal Justice Corrections 701-328-6651 Open
Michelle Gayette Principle State Agency: Aging |DHS —Aging Services |1237 West Divide Avenue Suite 6 Bismarck ND 58501 W: 328-4613; |mgayette@nd.gov Open
Division Fax: 328-8744
Patricia Arnold Principle State Agency - ND Department of 600 E. Boulevard Avenue - Bismarck ND 58505 701-328-2265 |parnold@nd.gov Open
Education Public Instruction Judicial Wing - Dept #201
Carlotta McCleary Advocacy Group ND Federation of PO Box 3061 Bismarck ND 58502 (701) 222-3310 | carlottamccleary@mhand.org
Families for Children's ’ Open
Mental Health
Tom Regan Advocacy Group Mental Health America | PO Box 4106 Bismarck ND 58502-4106 W: 255-3692 tom@heartview.org
of North Dakota Open
Siobhan Deppa Advocacy Group North Dakota 2130 S. 12th Street #310 Bismarck ND 58504 701-223-8535 |siobhandeppa@gmail.com
Consumer and Family Open
Network
Teresa Larsen Advocacy Group Protection and 400 E Bdwy Ave Ste 409 Bismarck ND 58501 W: 328-2950; |tlarsen@nd.gov Open
Advocacy Project Fax: 328-3934
Rosalie Etherington State Employee - Public DHS — ND State 2605 Circle Dr Jamestown ND 58401-6905 W: 253-3964 retherington@nd.gov
Behavioral Health Service Hospital - ND Open
Delivery Developmental Center
Jane Johnson National Guard North Dakota National |3920 31st St. No. Fargo ND 58102 W:451-6078 |jane.m.johnson.nfg@mail.mil Open
Guard
Jodi Stittsworth Family member of child with 739 Great Plains Ct Grand Forks ND 58201 701-610-1724 |jodil510@hotmail.com 6/30/2018
SED
Darrin Albert Individual in Recovery: MH 2559 55th Ave. S Fargo ND 58104 701-235-8315 |darrin_albert@yahoo.com 6/30/2018
Jeff Herman Private SA Provider Prairie at St. John's 510 4th Street South Fargo ND 58103 701-476-7221 |Jeff.Herman@uhsinc.com 6/30/2016
Troy Ertelt Private MH Provider 725 Hamline Street Grand Forks ND 58203 701-780-6881 |tertelt@atagf.com 6/30/2016
Jeffrey Olson Individual in Recovery: SA PO Box 473 Wilton ND 58579 701-426-6308 |jro.ptf@hotmail.com 6/30/2016
Derek Solberg Family Member of Individual in 1006 N. 29th Street Bismarck ND 58501 701-530-2420 |dacksolberg@hotmail.com 6/30/2016
Recovery.
Deb Jendro Individual in Recovery: MH 2709 Elm St Fargo ND 58102 W:235-9923  |djendro@ndffcmh.com 6/30/2017
Debra Johnson Family member of adult with 930 N 3" st Grand Forks ND 58203 W: 795-9143; C:|djohnsonphf@yahoo.com
SMI 218-791-2660; 6/30/2014
Fax: 795-5560
Carl Young Family member of child with PO Box 1090 Garrison ND 58540 701-463-7804 |carl@clientfactor.com 6/30/2017
SED
Timothy Wicks Veteran Bismarck ND 58506 timothy.wicksTW@gmail.com 6/30/2017
Kurt Snyder Individual in Recovery: SA 101 E. Broadway Bismarck ND 58501 701-222-0386 | kurt@heartview.org
Lorraine Davis Member at Large Native American 205 North 24th Street Bismarck ND 58501 701-595-5181 |lorrainedvs@ndnativecenter.org
Development Center
VACANT Medical Provider
VACANT Tribal Behavioral Health
VACANT Family Member of a Veteran
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Key Recommendations for Governor and Legislature (Updated 11/10/16)

1. Fund a comprehensive approach to behavioral health with an implementation of the full
continuum of care model. See Attachment A

2. Fund and implement the Medicaid 1915 (i) amendment to the state plan in the 2017-19 biennium
budget.

a.  Fund peer support services statewide with a goal to ensure that any individual receiving case
management has access to peer support services.

b. Increase availability of long term employment supports for qualified individuals.

C. Expand crisis intervention services including mobile crisis units statewide, peer supports
within crisis intervention services, additional residential crisis beds, and less reliance on hospitals
to perform these services.

d. Fund permanent supportive housing services for pre and post tenancy.

3. Fund Medicaid expansion and urge the legislature to reaffirm the expansion prior to sunset on
July 2017

4.  Follow EPSDT Medicaid mandates, filling existing service gaps for required services See Attachment
B

5.  Continued funding of the Housing Incentive Fund with a priority to support development of
permanent supported housing

6.  Establish and fund behavioral health courts and implement necessary public behavioral health
provisions, including services for veterans see Attachment C

7.  Ensure Human service centers provide services in a manner so all individuals who are eligible for
services are able to receive an unconditional care model of services (zero reject)

8.  State agencies must be provided with state training to increase military cultural competency (how
to communicate with veterans or those who have served). This training should also be made available to
any providers of behavioral health services including private providers. ND Cares Network would be a
good resource for the training materials.



Key Recommendations for the Department of Human Services

1. Fund a comprehensive approach to behavioral health with an implementation of the full
continuum of care model. See Attachment A

2. Fund and implement the Medicaid 1915 (i) amendment to the state plan in the 2017-19 biennium
budget.

a. Fund peer support services statewide with a goal to ensure that any individual receiving case
management has access to peer support services.

b. Increase availability of long term employment supports for qualified individuals.

C. Expand crisis intervention services including mobile crisis units state-wide, peer supports
within crisis intervention services, additional residential crisis beds, and less reliance on hospitals
to perform those services.

d. Funding permanent supportive housing services for pre and post tenancy.
3. Fund Medicaid expansion and urge the legislature to reaffirm the expansion prior to sunset on July
2017
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